
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

Robin Gomez – City Manager 

AGENDA Tuesday, September 29,  2020 7:00PM 
A. ROLL CALL

B. WORK SESSION - RESIDENT COMMENT POLICY
Any member of the public may address questions or comments to the Council referencing only agenda items after the Mayor
and council have had the opportunity to discuss the agenda item. Each Attendee will be allowed 3 minutes for comments at
the discretion of the Presiding Officer. Attendees will be asked to conclude their comments in a reasonable time period if
they exceed the 3 minute limit.

C. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS

D. OLD BUSINESS

E. NEW BUSINESS
E1) Discuss amending Section 13-3 of the Municipal Code
E2)  Discuss Appointing a Council member to the Vacant Seat on DDA.
E3) Discuss Plantings in the open field and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest
E4)  Discuss All park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional, naturalist interpreter
or someone with content knowledge in environmental studies, natural sciences such as watersheds, ecology, or
zoology as well as park management.
E5)  Discuss an  Update to ordinance where land disturbance and stream buffers are concerned to increase
undisturbed buffers from 50 ft to 75 ft
E6)  Approve a Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of Clarkston
E7)  Approve Alcohol Package Store License application Lulu’s Package
E8)  Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City’s Adoption of the DeKalb County Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation
Plan
E9)  Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’
VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3611 Church Street
E10) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’
VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3874 E Ponce de Leon Ave.
E11) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’
VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just outside (East)
of I-285.
E12) Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’
VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just inside (West)
of I-285.

F. ADJOURNMENT

Jamie Carroll      Laura Hopkins 
Ahmed Hassan Debra Johnson      

Awet Eyasu – Vice-Mayor 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 
 

SUBJECT:  Discuss Amending Section 13-3 of the Municipal Code 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:    
 
Discuss the amending Section 13-3 from the Municipal Code 
 
NEED/IMPACT: 
Section 13-3 was adopted in 1991 to provide for Restriction on the use of certain athletic parks. The full 
section 13-3 is cited below: 
 
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person over the age of twelve (12) years to use the athletic field in Milam 
Park in the city which lies contiguous to Norman Road for the purpose of playing baseball or softball.  
(b) For the purposes of this section, one shall be considered as playing baseball or softball if he is a 
participant on a team which is playing or practicing baseball or softball on said field or if he strikes a 
baseball or softball with a bat while located on that field or throws a baseball or softball on that field; 
provided, however, nothing contained herein shall preclude any person who is acting as a coach for 
children twelve (12) years old and under to participate in coaching drills with such children.  
(c) The city shall post signs at the subject field to inform the public of the restrictions as set forth in this 
section.  
(d) Any person who shall be in violation of this section shall be punished in accordance with section 1-7 of 
this Code. 
 
Council to consider amending section 13-3 to remove from paragraph (b) the reference to “throws a 
baseball or softball on that field,” and to add the phrase “For the protection of park visitors on the 
playground, dog park and swimming pool,” ahead of section (a). 
 
RECOMENDATION 
Staff has no recommendation.  

ITEM NO: E1 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Debra Johnson, Awet Eyasu 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL TO AMEND CHAPTER 13 

OF THE CITY CODE, CONCERNING PARKS AND RECREATION, TO CLARIFY 

RESTRICTIONS ON PLAYING BASEBALL OR SOFTBALL AT MILAM PARK. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to clarify and better explain the restrictions on playing 

baseball or softball at Milam Park. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Clarkston City Council as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE 

 

City Code Section 13-3 is hereby repealed and replaced with the following text: 

 

“Sec. 13-3. - Restriction on the use of certain athletic parks. 

 

(a) In order to protect park visitors making use of the playground, dog park and swimming 

pool at Milam Park, it shall be unlawful for any person over the age of twelve (12) years 

to use the athletic field in Milam Park for the purpose of playing baseball or softball. 

 

(b) For the purposes of this section, a person shall be considered to be “playing baseball or 

softball”  if he or she is a participant on a team which is playing or practicing baseball or 

softball on said field, or if he or she strikes a baseball or softball with a bat while located 

on that field.  Throwing a baseball or softball on that field shall not constitute “playing 

baseball or softball” so long as such throwing is not part of an organized game or 

practice.   

 

(c) The forgoing notwithstanding, this section is not intended to prohibit any person who is 

acting as a coach for children twelve (12) years old and under from participating in 

coaching drills with such children. 

 

(d) The city manager shall cause signs to be posted at the subject field at Milam Park to 

inform the public of the restrictions as set forth in this section. 

 

(e) Any person who shall be in violation of this section shall be punished in accordance with 

section 1-7 of this Code.” 

 

SECTION TWO 

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of its adoption by the City Council.  

Any provision of any ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 

 

 

[signature page follows] 



 

SO ORDAINED, this ___ day of ____________, 2020. 

 

CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

 

 

                                                             ________________________________ 

 Awet Eyasu, Vice Mayor 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________ 

Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

_Stephen G. Quinn__________ 

Stephen Quinn, City Attorney 

 
 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020

SUBJECT:  Discuss Appointing a Council member to the Vacant Seat on DDA 

 

PURPOSE:   To discuss filling the vacant Clarkston Development Authority seat of former Council Member YT Bell. 

NEED/ IMPACT:  At the December 3, 2019 Council Meeting, YT Bell was appointed to serve a two year term on the 
Clarkston  Development Authority.  On August 12, 2020, YT Bell qualified as a candidate for the Clarkston Mayor 
Special Election and vacated her Council Seat. 

RECOMMENDATION: Council to consider appointing a new CDA member. 

ITEM NO:  E2 

ACTION TYPE: 
CDA APPOINTMENT 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO 
Pages: 2 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO  

INFORMATION CONTACT:  Awet Eyasu, Jamie Carroll 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Discuss Plantings in the open field and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest 

PURPOSE: 
Discuss Plantings in the open field and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest 

RECOMENDATION 
Staff has no recommendation. 

ITEM NO: E3 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Environmental and Transportation Committee 8/17/2020   
Last Modified 8/13/2020 

E3.  Discussion of 
plantings in open 
field and pollinator 
garden in 
Friendship Forest



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 

SUBJECT Discuss all park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional, 
naturalist interpreter or someone with content knowledge in environmental studies, natural 
sciences such as watersheds, ecology, or zoology as well as park management. 

PURPOSE: 
Discuss all park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional, naturalist 
interpreter or someone with content knowledge in environmental studies, natural sciences such as 
watersheds, ecology, or zoology as well as park management. 

RECOMENDATION 
Staff has no recommendation. 

ITEM NO: E4 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Environmental and Transportation Committee 8/17/2020   
Last Modified 8/13/2020 

E4. Recommend that all park signage be written and coordinated by a park 
management professional, naturalist interpreter or someone with content 
knowledge in environmental studies, natural sciences such as watersheds, 
ecology, or zoology as well as park management

https://www.nps.gov/idp/interp/101/FoundationsCurriculum.pdf 

“There are essentially two ways to deliver interpretation: personal services and media (non-personal) 
services. Personal services provide opportunities for visitors to interact with an interpreter in person. They 
include such things as informal contacts, talks, guided walks and demonstrations. However, personal 
services reach only as much as 22% of the visitors. In contrast over 62% of visitors receive interpretation 
through media services such as brochures, newspapers, audio tours and exhibit labels. Regardless of the 
type of interpretative service being provided, the definition of interpretation remains the same for both 
(Visitor Use and Evaluation of Interpretive Media, 2003).  

So what is interpretation? It is a bridge between the meanings of the resources and interests of the visitors. 
It connects the tangible artifacts, collections or natural resources of a site to the intangible concepts they 
can represent.” 

Park Signage Resources: https://panniergraphics.com/ 

https://www.nps.gov/idp/interp/101/FoundationsCurriculum.pdf
https://panniergraphics.com/


CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 
 

SUBJECT Discuss an Update to ordinance where land disturbance and stream buffers are concerned to 
increase undisturbed buffers from 50 ft to 75 ft 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:    
Discuss an Update to ordinance where land disturbance and stream buffers are concerned to increase 
undisturbed buffers from 50 ft to 75 ft 
 
RECOMENDATION 
Staff has no recommendation.  

ITEM NO: E5 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 

SUBJECT:   Approve a Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of 
Clarkston.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   City Council to adopt a resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in 
the City of Clarkston.     
 
BACKGROUND/IMPACT:    
The City of Clarkston joins other cities and local governments across our country in supporting victims of 
domestic violence and sharing the worthy goals of this month long observance including the continued 
support for the work of public and private agencies and organizations that strive to provide the best 
coordinated responses to domestic violence sending a loud and clear message to abusers that domestic 
violence is not and will not be tolerated in the City of Clarkston. 
 
Domestic violence poisons relationships, destroys lives, and shatters the bedrock of our society — the 
family.  Homes should be places of comfort and stability where love and mutual respect thrive.  Domestic 
violence erodes this environment, leaving many Americans in potentially life-threatening situations.  As a 
Nation, we must resolve to have zero tolerance for acts of domestic violence.  During National Domestic 
Violence Awareness Month, we reaffirm our steadfast commitment to empowering survivors and ending 
this deeply destructive abuse – Federal Proclamation on National Domestic Violence Awareness Month.  

ITEM NO:  E6 

ACTION TYPE: 
RESOLUTION 
 HEARING TYPE: 

Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO 
Pages: 1 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: DEBRA JOHNSON,  
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF CLARKSTON DECLARING OCTOBER AS 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH IN THE CITY OF CLARKSTON. 

 
WHEREAS, domestic violence is a serious crime that affects people of all races, ages, gender, 
and income levels; and 
 
WHEREAS, domestic violence is widespread and affects over 4 million Americans each year; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, 1 in 3 Americans have witnessed an incident of domestic violence; and 
 
WHEREAS, on average, nearly 20 people per minute are physically abused by an intimate 
partner in the US, during one year, this equates to more than 10 million men and women; and 
 
WHEREAS, 1 in 4 women, and 1 in 7 men have been victims of sever physical violence such as 
beatings, burnings, strangling, etc., by an intimate partner in their lifetime; and 
 
WHEREAS, children that grow up in homes with violent acts and behaviors are believed to be 
abused and neglected at a rate higher than the national average; and 
 
WHEREAS, domestic violence costs our country billions of dollars annually in medical 
expenses, police and court costs, shelters, foster care, sick leave, absenteeism, mental illness, and 
non-productivity; and 
 
WHEREAS, only a comprehensive and coordinated community effort will help put a stop to this 
most heinous crime; and 
 
WHEREAS, Domestic Violence Awareness Month provides an excellent opportunity for 
residents to learn more about preventing domestic violence and to show support for the 
numerous organizations and individuals who provide critical advocacy, services, and assistance 
to victims; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clarkston, Georgia 
hereby adopts this Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the 
City of Clarkston, GA.  and the City of Clarkston will host an annual event in remembrance of 
the survivors of Domestic Violence each year, and publicize prevention awareness resources & 
materials on the City Website. 
 
SO RESOLVED, this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

 



                                                             ________________________________ 
 Awet Eyasu, Vice Mayor 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: To consider a new alcohol beverage license application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   The Alcohol Review Committee (ARC) has received and reviewed an ownership change 
application for alcohol beverage package store for Beer/Wine/Malt/Liquor.  The location to be 
considered for this alcohol beverage license is Lulu’s Package Store located at 3900 E Ponce De Leon 
Ave. 
 
NEED/ IMPACT:  The new owner of the Lulus Package store at 3900 E Ponce de Leon Ave has made 
application for an alcohol beverage, license for Beer/Wine/Malt/Liquor beverages for retail package 
sales. To date: all of the required inspections have been performed and the required background 
check has been passed. Code Compliance Officer Shennetha Smith has reviewed the application and 
has measured the location and found it does meet minimum distances as defined by the Code. 
 
 
The ARC has performed a thorough review of the various components to this application. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff (ARC) recommends approval.   
 
Under Clarkston Code Sec. 3-53, the City Council is vested with the final authority to grant an alcohol 
license. 
 

ITEM NO:  E7 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: Alcohol Review Committee 

ATTACHMENT:   YES  NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING:  YES  NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   City Manager 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



,, .. 
,,.,,,, 
, .... , .. •�c•' CITY OF t 

I-� LARKSTON-
where possibilities grow 

NEW ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE INFORMATION & CHECK LIST 

□ A state license must be obtained before any alcoholic beverages can be served or sold in the City of Clarkston.
Contact the Georgia Department of Revenue at (404) 417-4902.

□ Read and understand the.City's Alcohol Beverage Ordinance, Chapter 3 of the Code of Ordinances.

□ If applicant i§31 new establishment you must also obtain an Occupational Tax Permit, please contact
City Hall at (404) 296-6489.

□ The following information will be required at the time of submittal of the application:
□ Completed Application Form (signed and notarized);

□ Must obtain or have an Occupational Tax Certificate;

□ Personnel Statements from owner, partners, officers, directors, and major stockholders of private
corporations, and general manager with two current passport photographs

□ Two (2) Fingerprint Cards; Must be obtained with DeKalb County, Police Headquarters, 3630 Camp
Circle, Decatur, See attached form

□ All individuals required to complete personnel statements must contact the Police Department at
(404) 292-9465 for background check.

□ Cash or check for the license fee plus the administrative fee;

o Evidence of 0-\,vnership of the building or copy of the lease, if applicimt is le3sing the building;

□ A survey showing the distance to the nearest school/school grounds, church, library, public park, alcohol
treatmentfacility, adult entertainment;

□ If applicant represents a franchise, copy of the franchise agreement;

□ If applicant represents an eating establishment, submit a copy of the menu;

□ If applicant represents a partnership, submit copy of the partnershipagreement;

□ If applicant represents a corporation, submit articles of incorporation and certificate of
incorporation; 

□ Project purchases/projected gross sales (if applying for distilled spirits consumption);

□ Establishments holding an Alcohol Beverage License from the City of Clarkston must submit the
following reports:

On-Premise Consumption 
□ Excise tax-reporting for Liquor Sales (to be submitted monthly). Due the 20th of eachmonth;
□ Quarterly Reporting of food/ alcohol sales; due the last day of the month after each calendar
quarter.

1055 Rowland Street♦ Clarkston, Georgia 30021 ♦ (404) 296-6489 ♦ Page 1 of 12 



New Alcohol Beverage License Application 

Instructions: This application must be typed or printed legibly and executed 1mder oath. Each question must be 
fully answered. If space provided is not sufficient to answer the question please use a separate sheet of paper. 
Holding an alcohol beverage license with the City of Clarkston is a privilege. 

�New 
Date: 0·3!01\�o 
Contact Name: 'SQ \/\ C1 J 

□ Amendment

!=- -� JJ. a ·'tJQ Phone: s: 1 l - 2 l-2, -.£ b 4:-?
Business/Trade Name: '::t> .s '\'0.\-t� c)7 c,u '( L L c.,
D/B/A: Lt.L\i,1 '> �t�cti.,,. e-1-ore.., 
BusinessAddress:3000 :-Qo="-C,� ,JQQ�O'tA �f' fQl\M}ou? <1:1
Emergency Contact Name: _____________ Phone: ____________ _ 
TYPE OF BUSINESS 
□ Convenience Store
□ Grocery Store
)(Package Store
□ Manufacturer
□ Specialty Beverage Store
□ Restaurant
□ Wholesale
□Other: ___________ _

TYPE OF LICENSE AND FEES 
Retail Dealers On-Premise Consumption/Retail Dealers Package 
□ Beer/lvialt Beverages $750
□ Wjlle $750
.i-l'f(l¢Wine/Malt Beverages $1,000
lYl5fstilled Spirits $2,500
□ Wholesale Wine or Beer/Malt $350
□ Wholesale Beer/Wine/Malt $450
□ Wholesale Distilled Spirits (City) $5,000, No location in City $450
�inistrative (Investigative Application) Fee (applicable to all Licenses) $200.00
Employee Work Permit Initial/Renewal $50.00 (per employee) Must apply Clarkston Municipal Courts Office
( 404-292-9465

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Page 2 of 12 



APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Please submit a passport photograph of owner(s with completed application. 

Address of Applicant (if different for the past 5 years): 

Have you ever been arrested?□ Yes)(No (If yes, explain) __________________ � 

BUSINESS INFORMATION 

Type of business entity: □ Sole Proprietorship □ Partnership K_Corporation □ Other 

Has an Occupational Tax Certificate been obtained and paid for at said business? �yes □ No (If not issued 
by the City of Clarkston please include a copy with application.) 

Federal Tax ID Number: � '8 -� &-0 4-,( qcq ·f State Tax ID Number: ::2 0 0 - d 1 q 'd L"3
. 

Do you own the property? □ Yes�No (If no, please provide name, address, and contact number for the 
landlord. A copy of the Lease must be attached to this application.) _______________ _ 

Name each person(s) having a financial interest in the Establishment. 
Full Name Position Social Security Address 

Number 
% of Interest 

/lJD O o 

Have you or anyone with interest in the establishment ever or do you currently hold an alcohol beverage license 
with any other municipality, county, or state? □ Yes"f.No 

If so, have you or anyone holding interest in the establishment ever been placed on probation or had your 
license revoked? □ Yes □ No (If yes, please explain on separate sheet of paper and attach hereto.) 

Page 3 of 12 



Provide name, address, Social Security Number, and phone number for each Manager if different from owner. 
A passport photograph, Personnel Statement, and Background Check must be submitted for each manager. 

Full Name Social Security Address % of Interest 
Number 

OlJ u 

If new application for Retail Sale, attach a surveyor's plat and state the straight line distance from property line 
of school, church, library, or public recreation area to the wall of the building where alcohol beverages are sold. 

Church: School: 
----------- --------------

Library: __________ _ Public Recreation: 
----------

VERIFICATION OF APPLICATION 

I hereby make application for an Alcohol Beverage License for the City of Clarkston. I understand that holding 
this license is a privilege. I do hereby affirm and swear that the information provided herein is true, complete 
and accurate, and I understand that any inaccuracies may be considered just cause for invalidation of this 
application and any action taken on this application. I understand the City of Clarkston reserves the right to 
enforce any and all ordinances regardless of payment of license fee and further that it is my/our responsibility to 
confom1 vvith said ordinances in full. I hereby acknowledge that all requirements shall be adhered to. I can 
read the English language and I freely and voluntarily have completed this application. I understand that it is a 
fo lon

Nc 
false statements or writings lo the City of Clarkston pursuant to O .C. GA § 16-10-20.

Signature of Applicant or Agent 

�ru� r,eSSa ht),� 
Print or Type Name 

I certify that '$ E- 1\1 A 1"'f Fe ..SSA 1-1:Ayt (name of applicant) personally appeared before me, and 
that he signed his name to the foregoing statements and answers made therein, and under oath, has swom that 
said statements and answers are trne. 

Notar·· 

My commission expires on: AtJd,5/ ,i',d/P<X'1

ZUBAIR MAHMUD 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
Gwinnett County 
State of Georgia 

My Comm. Expires Aug. 28, 2022 

Page 4 of 12 

Survey attached, Code Officer Smith comfirmed measurement accuracy. 



BACKGROUND CHECK OWNERS/MANAGERS 

An Alcohol Permit Applications must include a background check for all owners, partners and managers. 

Application must be made to the City of Clarkston Police Department, Municipal Courts, 3921 Church Street, 
Clarkston, GA 30021, (404) 292-9465 

Hours: 9:00a.m. to 4:00p.m. Monday through Friday 

Fees: 
Owner/Manger Permits are $50.00 which includes processing of Criminal History record 
Payment Forms: Cash or Credit Card 

Date: 3-- S - "2C>

Title: \/( t'. � t .l.-A +

Are you an Owner or Manager? □ Manager � Owner □ Partner 

If you are an Owner/ Manager have you obtained Personnel Statement from City Hall? □ Yes □ No 

Do you consent to the Clarkston Police Department checking your criminal history? □ Yes □ No 

Have you ever been convicted or has plead guilty or entered a plea of nolo contend ere to any crime, misdemeanor, 
and/or felony involving moral turpitude, lottery, or illegal possession or sale of narcotics or liquors within a period of
ten (10) years immediately prior to the filing of such application. □Yes, Please Explain � No 

Are you currently serving probation? □ Yes, Please Explain �No 

For Official Use Only 
City Hall; 

Authorized By: ______________ Date: _____ _ 

Police Department; 
Criminal History Record Checked? □ Yes □ No 
Applicant is able to obtain Permit? □ Yes □ No, If no, please state reason for denial. 

Permit No. ____________ _ 

ID Paid: D Yes D No 

Signed By: ____________ Date: _____ _ Name: ___________ _ 
Please Print Name 

Page 5 of 12 

X
X

Background check/fingerprinting conducted by DeKalb PD for GBI verification

Code S. Smith 9-16-2020 Shennetha Smith



ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERSONNEL STATEMENT 
OWNERS/MANAGERS/ASSIST.ANT MANAGERS

For Official Use Only 
Type of License: _______ _ Business: 

----------------

Address: _______________ _ 
Telephone: 

Instructions: This personnel statement must be executed under oath or affinnation by every person having any 
ownership or profit sharing interest in, or managing any place of business applying for license from the City of 
Clarkston, Georgia to sell or deal in alcoholic beverages or distilled spirits. Please type or print clearly in ink. If not 
legible, Statement will not be accepted. Each question must be fully answered. If the space provided is not sufficient, 
answer the question on a separate sheet and indicate in the space provided that such separate sheet is attached. A 
personnel statement, including two (2) passport-size photographs and two (2) fingerprint cards are required by
Questions 31 and 32, for all owners/managers/assistant managers and must be submitted with every license
application. 

\\ 
1. S�\J\aiJ- �Q..U o...M �o

Full Name of Appicant an 

2. Social Security Number:

"L.- 3. Driver's License Number:
• 

4. Date of Birth: --·------�-

5. U.S. Citizen A copy of verifiable identification must be provided at the time of application. Copy of driver's
license or State photo ID card. 
a. ( ) by birth
b. 't><tNaturalized

Date: \ \ - Z I·- ZvJ 3 Place:�Sy C�
-1:-f I Mti Court: l!} .l>iJm,±: G)J..ft: VVb

Certificate Number: 3 b 2,,'3 8D \ 3 

Alien Registration Number: 

Native Country:_\3...,,.,...._.v'--11....i+L..1<...::c'..a�------ Date of Port Entry: _ _.2='-"o .... o"""".:1--=-------
6. How long have you been a legal resident of Georgia? Years ?,;, Months 

----

7. Marital Status ( ) Single 
M

Married ( ) Widowed ( ) Divorced ( ) Separated

8. If married, give spouse's full name _Wi=...;cO:::..· �t...,.rl::::..e=--.G,;z.•�::..,;""'c.L..J.LfJ ... &-""-'-, ..... 4'---R'-'" ,..("""J... .... .f.::..;Zc.c...2' .,::0c...,tc..,:'?'\'-\_ _______ _

9. Physical Description of Appli�ant Afu' 0:,1 bnulRace ____g_Sex ? · -'f� Height laz... Weight
--�Age �air Color &ow" Eyes 

10. Education and training specific to restaurant/alcohol field. ___________________ 

11. Have you ever used or been known by any other name �es 
MN

o 

12. List maiden name, names by former marriages, former names changed legal�y o:i;. otherwise, aliases or
nicknames. For each, list the period which you were known by this name. _ __."1--+{ _t't __________ _

13. Are you registered to vote in the state of Georgia ( ) yes (1../J No
County Registered__________ Number of years registered ________ _ 

Page 6 of 12 ,f 

" 

Package Store Lulu's Package
3900 E Ponce de Leon Ave



14. For the last calendar year, did you file and pay any County property tax
15. For the last calendar year, did you file and pay any City property tax

Name of City '5 \/q Si R \J-..i:. \\ll. Q . <J, o,' 

�yes () No
i'.xi.Yes ( )No

16. Employment record for the past ten (10) years (Give most recent experience first, is self-employed give details)
Frnm To Empl9yer Occupational Duties . Reas� Leaving , ,

a. /-""t1 $.j.. q,'Je c-ddt:)= {fl,1-'(ec.f-ly,/: (:i&lkv'tJ 9.fdf!, ;7b•'£'"17-/d <5 
b. fi rz2ex l:/4a11P ,� O•-=- t tVI/: 
C. 

d.
e.
f. 

g. 

h. 

17. List, with your most recent place ofresidence first, all of your residences for the past ten (10) years
Date From/To Street City State 

a. SJ 91Q'.Li72/d-.� §?675 ,!-cr1::e Cnttznt,;(77$'¾: Ct 0'2/elLrJ;f L p G-tZ 3 ° 0 7,Z: /'feokSt>Jl
b. 4H rO 6 ,lf,<'Je,k a clncJ (?o/,1:d2r'0>, p:,r, 6-'£ 2o ·2, 7 :fs,:0/- >
c. 16 ·;;o ,Gho.-v;f- p,9:7,£ l).e.>,.,u,-e_, Tit-J-e,., G-& � vo 'Y Lf
d.
e. 

18. Military Service ()Yes�No List Serial Number ____ _ Branch of Service ____ _
Period of Service. _____ _ Date of Discharge, ______ Type of Discharge _______ _

19. Have you ever been convicted of a felony relating to violence, illegal substances, gambling, theft or alcohol use, or
of a crime opposed to decency and morality, or who has been convicted of a crime involving violation of the 
ordinances of the city or any other city or county relating to the use, sale, taxability, or possession of malt beverages,
wine or liquor, or violations of the laws of the state and federal government pertaining to the manufacture, 
possession, transportation or sale of malt beverages, wine or intoxicating liquors, or the taxability thereof within ten
(10) years preceding this application? ____ Yes t....-: No
20. Full name of dealer and trade name, if any, submitting application of which this personnel statement is a part.

21. Position of applicant in dealer's business. _________________________ _
22. Does applicant have any ownership/profit sharing interest in the business? ()Yes()No

State annual salary of applicant or the estimated annual profit or compensation derived from this business.

Page 7 of 12 



23. Do you have any financial interest in any bar, lounge, tavern, restaurant, or other J?_l':ce of business where
alcoholic beverages are sold and consumed on the business premises? ( ) Yes �No if yes, explain

24. Do you have any financial or are you employed in any wholesale or retail liquor business other than the business
submitting the license application of which this personnel statement is a part? ()Yes� No if yes, give names and
locations and amount of interest in each. 

25. Do you have any financial interest or are you employed in any business engaged in distilling, bottling, rectifying
or selling ( wholesale, retail or manufacturing) alcoholic beverages in this state or outside this state which has not
otherwise been disclosed in the statement. ( ) Yes'i:>4No If yes, explain

26. Have you ever had any financial interest in an alcoholic beverage business which was denied a permit? ( ) Yes 1)4..No if yes,explain _______________________________ _ 

27. Has any alcoholic beverage business in which you hold or have held any financial interest or have been
employed, ever been cited for any violation for the rul<ts and regulations of the State Revenue Commission relating
to the sale or distribution of distilled spirits? ( ) Yes l',() No If yes, explain ______________ _

28. Have you ever been denied a bond by a commercial surety company? ( ) Yes '�No if yes, explain

29. Are you related by blood, marriage or adoption to any persons engaged in any business handling alcoholic
beverages, whiskeys or liquors in the State of Georgia. ( ) Yes /)4No
30. Personal References. Give three (3) personal references, not relatives (i.e., former employees, fellow employees
or school teachers who are responsible adults, business or professional men or women) who have known you well
during the past five (5) years.

Name fl i,3',,,,#) f.\.Ctj t:\.,f, C,, 1 '0 E'. pot f F (},
Residence 2�·3 Q[u., · ' ;,3 i'-"<'Y-th Bft1·2, G52,ol Business Address = 0 ' 
Telephone Number_____________ Number of years known __ _ 

·31. Attach two (2) passport-size photographs (front view). Write name on back of photo)g�raphs and also the name of  
dealer submitting a license application. Initial here if such photographs are attached. � .,, '----------

32. There must be submitted with this personal statement the fingerprints of applicant on two (2) fingerprint cards, 
which will be furnished to the City of Clarkston. Initial here that such fingerprintcards are attached. Completed by 
DeKalb Police /Fingerprints

Page 8 of 12 / 



Verification 

I, � � e ,5. S:o. h C\ y-e . applicant, do solemnly swear, subject to criminal penalties for false swearing, that the statements and answers made by me to the foregoing questions in this application for a City of Clarkston license as a dealer in alcoholic beverage and distilled spirits are true, and no false or fraudulent statements or answer is made therein to procure the granting of such license. I hereby submit for an Alcoholic Beverage Privilege License Personnel Statement for the City of Clarkston. I do hereby swear or affirm that the information provided herein is true, complete and accurate, and I understand that any inaccuracies may be considered just case for invalidation of this statement and any related application. I certify that neither I, nor any of the other owners of the retail or wholesale establishment, nor the manager of such establishment has been convicted or has plead guilty or entered a plea of nolo contendere to any crime, misdemeanor, and/ or felony involving moral turpitude, lottery, or illegal possession or sale of narcotics or liquors within a period of ten (10) years immediately prior to the filing of such application. I understand the City of Clarkston reserves the right to enforce any and all ordinances regardless of payment of license fees and further that it is my/ our responsibility to conform to said ordinance in full. I hereby acknowledge that all requirements shall be adhered to. I can read the English language and I freely and voluntarily have completed this application. I understand that it is a felony to make false statements or writings to the City of Clarkston pursuant to 
' O.C.GA. §16-10-20. 

1 
A ,J '

¾q:A: t=-t�£abl\t< -� Apphcant s Signature (full name in ink) Applicant's Name (Print or Type) 

I certify that &tJAI T [ESSA HA'f E (name of applicant) personally appeared before me,and that he signed his name to the foregoing statements and answers made therein, and under oath, has sworn that said statements 
and answers are true. 

This :Ji)d day of
---.,:

�9'J','-""'.__ __ � 20 2..0

Seal: 
' ZUBAIR MAHMUDI NOTARY PUBLIC Gwinnett County 
I State of Georgia " My Comm. Expires Aug. 28, 2022

Page 9 of 12 



, ....... ,·,-,,
:�, ...
•�' CITY OF t 

I CLARKSTON� 
where posslbllitles grow 

FINGERPRINTS 
NON-CRIMINAL JUSTICE APPLICANT'S PRN ACY RIGHTS 

As an applicant that is the subject of a Georgia only or a Georgia and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) national 
fingerprint/biometric-based criminal history record check for a non-criminal justice purpose (such as an application for 
a job or license, immigration or naturalization, security clearance, or adoption), you have certain rights which are 
discussed below. 

You must be provided written notification that your fmgerprints/biometrics will be used to check the criminal 
history records maintained by the Georgia Crime Information Center (GCIC) and the FBI, when a federal 
record check is so authorized. 

If your fingerprints/biometrics are used to conduct a FBI national criminal history check, you are provided a 
copy of the Privacy Act Statement that would normally appear on the FBI fingerprint card. 

If you have a criminal history record, the agency making a determination of your suitability for the job, license, 
or other benefit must provide you the opportunity to complete or challenge the accuracy of the information in 
the record. 

The agency must advise you of the procedures for changing, correcting, or updating your criminal history 
record as set forth in Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section 16.34. 

• If you have a Georgia or FBI criminal history record, you should be afforded a reasonable amount of time to
correct or complete the record ( or decline to do so) before the agency denies you the job, license or other
benefit based on information in the criminal history record.

• In the event an adverse employment or licensing decision is made, you must be informed of all information
pertinent to that decision to include the contents of the record and the effect the record had upon the decision.
Failure to provide all such information to the person subject to the adverse decision shall be a misdemeanor
[O.C.G.A. § 35-3-34(b) and §35-3-35(b)].

You have the right to expect the agency receiving the results of the criminal history record check will use it only for 
authorized purposes and �;rill not retain or dissemi...11ate it i..."'1. violation of state :ind/ or federal statute, regulation or 
executive order, or rule, procedure or standard established by the National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact 
Council. 

If the employment/licensing agency policy permits, the agency may provide you with a copy of your Georgia or FBI 
criminal history record for review and possible challenge. If agency policy does not permit it to provide you a copy of 
the record, information regarding how to obtain a copy of your Georgia, FBI or other state criminal history may be 
obtained at the GBI website (http;//gbi.georgia.gov/obtajning-criminal-histm:y-record-information). 

If you decide to challenge the accuracy or completeness of your Georgia or FBI criminal history record, you should 
send your challenge to the agency that contributed the questioned information. Alternatively, you may send your 
challenge directly to GCIC provided the disputed arrest occurred in Georgia. Instructions to dispute the accuracy of 
your criminal history can be obtained at the GBI website (http://gbi.georgia.gov/obtaining-criminal-history-record
information). 

PRNACY ACT STATEMENT 
Authority: The FBI' s acquisition, preservation, and exchange of fmgerprints and associated information is generally 
authorized under 28 U.S.C. 534. Depending on the nature of your application, supplemental authorities include Federal 
statutes, State statutes pursuant to Pub. L. 92-544, Presidential Executive Orders, and federal regulations. Providing 
your fingerprints and associated information is voluntary; however, failure to do so may affect completion or approval 
of your application. 

Page 10 of 12 



Principal Purpose: Certain determinations, such as employment, licensing, and security clearances, may be predicated 
on fingerprint-based background checks. Your fmgerprints and associated information/biometrics may be provided to 
the employing, investigating, or otherwise responsible agency, and/or the FBI for the purpose of comparing your 
fingerprints to other fingerprints in the FBI's Next Generation Identification (NGI) system or its successor systems 
(including civil, criminal, and latent fingerprint repositories) or other available records of the employing, investigating, 
or otherwise responsible agency. The FBI may retain your fmgerprints and associated information/biometrics in NGI 
after the completion of this application and, while retained, your fingerprints may continue to be compared against 
other fingerprints submitted to or retained by NGI. 

Routine Uses: During the processing of this application and for as long thereafter as your fingerprints and associated 
information/biometrics are retained in NGI, your information may be disclosed pursuant to your consent, and may be 
disclosed without your consent as permitted by the Privacy Act of 1974 and all applicable Routine Uses as may be 
published at any time in the Federal Register, including the Routine Uses for the NGI system and the FBI's Blanket 
Routine Uses. Routine uses include, but are not limited to, disclosures to: employing, governmental or authorized non
governmental agencies responsible for employment, contracting, licensing, security clearances, and other suitability 
determinations; local, state, tribal, or federal law enforcement agencies; criminal justice agencies; and agencies 
responsible or ational security or public safety. 

RE 

SEAL 

ZUBAIR MAHMUD 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
Gwinnett County 
State of Georgia 

My Comm. Expires Aug. 28, 2022 

DATE 

DATE 

Page 11 of 12 

Results confirmed by Code Officer S. Smith, Clarkston 



March 17, 2020 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This is to confirm that I am 100% owner of DSM HJ Group, LLC. I have attached my certificate of 

corporation. 

Sincerely, 

Senait Fessahaye 



STATE OF GEORGIA 

Secretary of State 
Corporations Division 

313 West Tower 
2 Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1530 

CERTIFICATE OF ORGANIZATION 

Control Number : 20026455 

. I, Brad Raffensperger, Commissioner of the State of 
Georgia, hereby certify tmder the,·seal,ff ,r,"');ffi��. 

has been duly �d;rthe )�;; .of the State of Georgia on: ()2/20/2bi'.ii b} \�e\ filing of articles of 
organization in of thi i Secretary of State arid by th¢ paying of fees a,s.provip:,il! by Title 14 of the 
Official Code of Ge<)rni.iilmnotat:ed. 

. . \ 

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the City of Atlanta 
and the State of Georgia on 02/24/2020.

Brad Raffensperger 
Secretary of State 



ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION *Electronically Filed*
Secretary of State 

BUSINESS NAME 
BUSINESS TYPE 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

Senait Fessahaye 

Senait Fessahaye 

C C' 

', _,,, ",, 

MMli&dFIMEHIH 
AUTHORIZER SIGNATURE 

\,: 

AUTHORIZER TITLE 

Filing Date: 2/20/20201:13:56 PM

20026455
DSMHJ Group, LLC
Domestic Limited Liability Company
02/20/2020

3900 E PgnceO,i;L<!oµA'v�;,Clru:kston,.QA, 30021-1812, USA
= 

,, �,., -� 

ADDRESS > > ·... .. . . 
> 

•··.. i .··. . }, \\.\
39d�{p��c�peC��il Avb.,:c1atkston,GA,)il6i 1-\�l2;'usA 

3900 EPonce De LeoiiA ve,,.Clarksfoil, GA, 3002�•:1812, •if SA
'.) 

Dekalb



ALCOHOLIC IIEVEAAQE LICENSE SURVEY 

io: lloK•I• County Aloohol Lloon,o 

l\pplleonl'o Nomo: ll8MHL GROUP LLC 

Tr••· Nomo: LUWS PI\CKAG!a STOA!; 

Suoln••· l\odr, .. , 3000 !LPONCI; 1:)1; LiaON AVl;NUi;, CLARKSTON, GI\ 300!1 

Tho undorolgnoo ourvoyor ho• oKomlnoo tho oubJoot looollon ••• ho• m••• mooouromont, to dolormlno oomplloneo or 
non-oompllonoo with tho following oiolon,o roqulromonto, 

BE!R AND/ WIN! (100 YARDS MINIMUM) 

1, 1,400 yord, to tho noofllot "hool building, "hool Qfllun<l, oduoollonol fo,llily or 0011010 oompu,; !hi• lnoluoo, 
klnoorgortono, of ohuroho, whloh hovo ooh .. 10 or l<lndoreortono 10001,; •( folloll1nQ oddro,., 

/\TL/INTI\ SCHOOL FOB lli;I\F: BOO N, INllll\N CRl;i;K DR CLARKSTON, ClA 30021 

2, 4,224 yofllo to th, nHfll•I oloohol troolmonl oonlor or ooull onlortolnmonl 011,ollohmonl ot following •••••••· 

AllVI\NQ�P QOUNBHINO: 1370 MONTR�IIL Rll TUCK�B, GA 30084 
LIQUOR (100 VARI!& MINIMUM) 

1, 1,000 yofll, to tho "'""''I ohuroh or othor plooo •••• prlmorily for fllliolouo ,.,v10,, ot th• followi,g "°''""''

CLI\RKOTON INT�ANATIONAL: 3890 CHURCH Si CLARKBTON, IM 30021 

l, 4,224 yofllo to tho nooro,t oloohol tr�otmonl .. ntor or ooult ontortolomont 0,1,011,hmonl ot following oddroo§, 

AOVI\NCmo COUN6�LINCl: 1370 MONTRML RIHUCKl;R, (l/1, 30004 

3, 143 yordo to Pflvolo roollfonoo (lneluoo, houooo, oportmont,, ,on••• & olo), g1vo nomo If olhor lhoo • """"· 

901 Ml;LL I\V�NU�, CLARKSTON, ClA30021 

4, � yoro, to MOre&I oohool bulllfino, oohool ;roualf """ ••ll•e• oompu,; thl, lnoludoo klmJof{lort,no Of 
ohurohoo whioh hovo oohool• or kinoergonon,, Glvo ,omo """ odlfroOi on noxt lino, 

I\TLANTI\ SCHOOL FOR IJl;AI': HON, INlllAN CR��K CR CLARK6TON, GIA 30011 

LIQUOR ITORII (1,000 Y•rd• ml,lmYm) 

1, oo yord, lo tho noofllol oporollng liqyor oloro, Clivo oomploto nomo o,d odifoo, Oft fiOXt lino: 

T.XACO Cl/18 STATION: 3000 Ii, PONO� D� L�ON AV� CLARKSfON, GA 30011 

ALL MEAGURffM!NT8 ARE TO BB Al POLLDWII 

(o), Prom tho !root door ol th• otmot•r• from whloh oloohollo bovor«go I• to bo iOld or Hrvod, 
(bl In • otrolght lino to tho nHroot pYbllo •loowolk, 1troot, hlghwoy, rood or wnlkway: 
(o) /\lone ouoh pYbllo •ldowolk, otruot, hfghwoy, rood or wolkwoy:
(di To tho front door of th@ bulldlng, uni HI you oro moo,urlno to on odYontlon,I faolllty (1ohool1 ond ••hool

groYndo), Whon moHmlno to • ••hool, tho mooouromont otop• ot tho nonr,11 prop@rty liHO of tho fffthool, 

I .

Still@ Ll@Ot1§@ Numb11r 



I 

i, 
' 

I 
' 

' ! 

\'�, ' 
'

' ' 

,'! t ',

ghllliid Vlllu�;, 
Aputl111titll� 

Q 

! ·:11;1 

f,? 

M<-ruthon 

�,.Nli1im o "-
al!Ba GNYH:llH § 
CbAHIC§fflN, flA 300.11 

-•�• •l'•'l!'Yl''

imKirG:,N&i �11111!,QN AW 

�} 
Chevron 

m'" """""' 1 A :JOO.II 

'fill! !llli\WINO WAS PllliPARliD POR fHG UXCLll!IVli UBE OP TH!! P!!IIMON, PllRSONS Oil liN'l'l1'Y 
NAMliD lrnlU!ON POii ALCOHOL l'liRMIT OR LICllNSftAl'PLICATION PU RPO NB! ONt.V AN!l DOI!! 
NOT !!XTRND 'l'O ANY UNNAMU!l l'BllHON Wl'l'IIOUT A MCU!lTIPIC/\'l'ION DY THE HURVllVOR 

NAMINO Ml!) l'BIINON, 

© COPYI\JOHflOiO 
DOIJNIJAIIV WNII, INC, 
fHII !JRAWINO ANO IT'S 
R liPROflUCTIONS Allll 
THB PROPliRTV OP THI! 
91JRV!!YOIIANIJ MAY 
NO'I' All lU!PRODUCBIJ, 
l'IJBLrnllliO OR UB!!!l IN 
ANY WAY WlfHOU'I' 'l'llli 
WRl'l'1'llN PERMISSION 
OP THIM SURVMVOR, 

W�E 

� 

MAONliTW 
NORTH 

PROJECT 
2180JOl 

SHEET 
l OF l



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 

 

SUBJECT:   Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City’s Adoption of the DeKalb County Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation 
Plan     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   City Council to adopt a resolution authorizing the adoption of the 2016 DeKalb County Pre-Disaster 
Hazard Mitigation Plan.   
 
BACKGROUND/IMPACT:    
The City has been requested by the Dekalb County Emergency Management Agency (DEMA) to adopt a Resolution 
authorizing the City’s adoption of the referenced 2016 County plan enclosed in the following link: 
 
https://www.dekalbcountyga.gov/sites/default/files/DeKalbCountyGA_CountywideHazardMitigationPlan_2016with
Appendices.pdf  
 
The County notified us that in preparation for the next update in 2022, the City of Clarkston had not submitted an 
Adoption Resolution for the plan.  The resolution is necessary for the City to continue to remain eligible for disaster 
funds.  The plan essentially serves as the comprehensive emergency guide to all types of natural disasters resulting 
from floods, hurricanes, tornadoes, ice, snow, earthquakes, droughts, etc.  It is vitally important that the county and 
all cities have an adequate plan to best prepare and respond to all natural hazards and potential emergencies.  The 
City was an active participant with the County and other cities in the 2016 plan adoption and will similarly 
participate for the 2022 update.     
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Council to adopt a resolution authorizing the adoption of the 2016 DeKalb County Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation 
Plan 
 

ITEM NO:  E8 

ACTION TYPE: 
RESOLUTION 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO  
Pages: 1 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO  

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I GOMEZ,  
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



 
 



 



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF CLARKSTON ADOPTING THE 2016 DEKALB 

COUNTY PRE-DISASTER HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN. 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, DeKalb County and its municipal governments are required to complete a Pre-
Distaster Hazard Mitigation Plan by the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, local governments that 
complete Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Plans will remain eligible for Federal mitigation 
funding; and 

 

WHEREAS, DeKalb County and its municipal governments have completed a Pre-Disaster 
Hazard Mitigation Plan that fulfills the Federal requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 
2000. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clarkston, Georgia 
that the City of Clarkston hereby adopts this Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Plan.   
 
SO RESOLVED, this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

 

                                                             ________________________________ 
 Awet Eyasu, Vice Mayor 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 

SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE 
@ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3611 Church Street.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   City Council to discuss/review appeal by Railroad Outdoor LLC of City of Clarkston City 
Manager’s denial of a sign permit application from Railroad Outdoor LLC to erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE 
@ 50’ OAH billboard sign on the property located at 3611 Church St.   
 
BACKGROUND/IMPACT:    
City received referenced sign permit application (copy enclosed) on September 10, 2020, and subsequently 
submitted a denial on September 14, 2020 (copy enclosed), based on the City’s prohibition of pole signs.  
Applicant submitted a reply letter on September 16, 2020 (copy enclosed), appealing the City’s decision, 
suggesting that the City look for the most specific applicable regulations for the denial.  Our review found 
several specific City code references requiring denial of the application, specifically: 
 

1. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).  
2. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).   

 
City subsequently provided the applicant the specific denial reasons in a letter dated September 22, 2020 
(copy enclosed) as well as advising the applicant of the appeal date/time, October 6, 2002, beginning at 7 
pm.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Council to deny applicant’s sign permit application appeal.   

ITEM NO:  E9 

ACTION TYPE: 
BUSINESS APPEAL 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO 
Pages: 17 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I. GOMEZ,  
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   

















WEBB, KLASE & LEMOND, LLC 
AT T O R N E Y S  AT  L AW  

1900 THE EXCHANGE, S.E.  •  SUITE 480  •  ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30339 

(770) 444-9325  •  (770) 217-9950 (facsimile) 

 
Author’s Direct Dial:                        Email Address: 
    (770) 444-0773            Adam@WebbLLC.com 

 
September 16, 2020 

 
VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM 
Planning & Development Director 
City of Clarkston 
1055 Rowland Street  
Clarkston, GA 30021 
sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com 
 
 Re: Sign Applications for Railroad Outdoor, LLC 
 
Dear Ms. Qawiy: 
 
 I write to you in your capacity as Director of Planning and Development for the City of 
Clarkston on behalf of my client Railroad Outdoor, LLC (“Railroad”).  Pursuant to Section 15.5-
26(b)(1) of the Clarkston Code of Ordinances, please accept this letter as Railroad’s written 
notice of appeal from the City’s denial of my client’s four sign applications.  Based on my 
review of the City’s denial (Exh. A hereto) and the Chapter 15.5 Signs of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, I wanted to outline my client’s arguments on appeal.  These articulated grounds for 
appeal are not exhaustive, and Railroad reserves the right to present additional arguments prior to 
and at the City Council appeal hearing. 
 

All four of my client’s sign applications were denied on the grounds that “Pole signs are 
not permitted in the City of Clarkston.”  Denial of my client’s applications on this basis was 
incorrect for several reasons.  First, as you note in your September 14 email, all four of my 
client’s applications were for billboards, which are specifically governed by Section 15.5-63 of 
the Clarkston Code of Ordinances.  Your attempt to rely upon a general prohibition on pole signs 
rather than apply the more specific code section that governs billboards is inconsistent with 
Georgia law, which provides that the terms of a specific statute govern over those of a more 
general statute.  E.g., Denhardt v. Sparks, 844 S.E.2d 192, 195 (Ga. Ct. App. 2020); Vineville 
Capital Group, LLC v. McCook, 766 S.E.2d 156, 160 (Ga. Ct. App. 2014) (“the terms of a 
specific statute govern over those of a more general statute”); also Bellsouth 
Telecommunications, LLC v. Cobb County, 824 S.E.2d 233, 239 (Ga. 2019) (“the more specific 
statute governs over the more general one”).  Had you properly applied the more specific 
billboard regulation, the basis of denial would not have been applicable.   

 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

Section 15.5-63 allows billboards in the City of Clarkston that are 672 square feet in sign 
area and 50 feet in height, so long as the billboards are on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or 
I; are located on parcels adjacent to US Highway 78 or Interstate 285 and oriented thereto; and 
comply with the standards set by Georgia Department of Transportation as to the use of digital 
technology.  See Section 15.5-63(a)-(g).  My client’s applications meet all of these criteria and 
should have been approved.  Railroad is aware of several billboards that have been erected in 
Clarkston despite the ordinance’s general prohibition on pole signs.  It is plainly not applicable to 
billboards. 

 
My client’s applications for billboards on property owned by CSX Railroad should also 

have been granted.  According to the City’s Zoning Map (Exh. B hereto), the railroad property 
within the City of Clarkston has not been zoned.  Therefore, Georgia law requires that my client 
be allowed to install the requested signs.  The general rule is that the owner of property has the 
right to use their property in any lawful manner.  E.g., Cherokee County v. Martin, 253 Ga. App. 
395, 396 (2002); Picadilly Place Condo. Ass’n v. Frantz, 210 Ga. App. 676, 678 (1993).  
Because zoning regulations restrict this right, they must be strictly construed in favor of the 
property owner, and more specifically, the owner’s free use of  their property.  DeKalb County v. 
Post Apartment Homes, L.P., 234 Ga. App. 409, 410(1) (1998); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 396; 
Glynn County v. Palmatary, 247 Ga. 570, 574 (1981); also Fayette County v. Seagraves, 245 Ga. 
196, 197-98, 264 S.E.2d 13 (1980).  Consequently, land use limitations must (i) be clearly 
established, (ii) be enforced only as to their plain and explicit terms, and (iii) any ambiguities 
therein must be resolved in the owner’s favor.   E.g., Northside Corp. v. City of Atlanta, 278 Ga. 
416  (2005); JWIC, Inc. v. City of Sylvester, 278 Ga. 416, 417 (2004); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 
396; Picadilly, 210 Ga. App. at 678; Bo Fancy Productions v. Rabun County Bd. of Comm’s, 
267 Ga. 341, 343 (1996); Beugnot v. Coweta County, 231 Ga. App. 715, 722 (1998). 

 
Here, the CSX property is unzoned and thus not restricted by any applicable zoning 

regulations.  Although the CSX property has been inside the City limits for decades, the City has 
chosen not to zone the property.  As such, CSX has never had any opportunity to appear before 
the City Council to show the City what zoning and land use restrictions would be appropriate for 
the railroad property.  Thus, any restrictions being enforced by the City are invalid and void.  
E.g., Davidson Mineral Properties, Inc. v. Monroe County, 257 Ga. 215, 217 (1987) (holding 
county could not restrict use of property).  Because the City’s official zoning map 
unambiguously shows that the railroad property has not been zoned, the requested billboards 
must be allowed. 

 
Beyond these errors in misapplying the City’s Code of Ordinances and instances of 

undue discretion, Railroad also believes that the City’s guidelines with respect to billboard signs 
regulate on the basis of content.  Why else would your September 14 email request that my client 
resubmit renderings of the proposed signs with the proposed wording of the sign.  In the decision 
of Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 135 S. Ct. 2218, 2227 (2015), the Supreme Court held that 
“[g]overnment regulation of speech is content-based if a law applies to particular speech because 
of the topic discussed or the idea or message expressed.”  Id. at 2227 (citations omitted).  The 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 
Court deemed this rule to be “commonsense” and requires a reviewing court to determine 
whether a law “‘on its face’ draws distinctions based on the message a speaker conveys.”  Id. 
 

The Court then devoted several pages of its opinion to rejecting the rationales of the 
lower courts for finding that the law was content-neutral.  Id. at 2227-31.  For instance, the Court 
found that the government’s motives in adopting the law are irrelevant if the law regulates by 
content on its face.  Id. at 2228 (“Innocent motives do not eliminate the danger of censorship 
presented by a facially content-based statute, as future government officials may one day wield 
such statutes to suppress disfavored speech”).  The Court also noted that “a speech regulation 
targeted at specific subject matter is content-based even if it does not discriminate among 
viewpoints within that subject matter.”  Id. at 2230. 

The Court then analyzed whether the content-based law could survive strict scrutiny, 
“which requires the Government to prove that the restriction furthers a compelling interest and is 
narrowly tailored to achieve that interest.”  Id. at 2231 (citations omitted).  The Court held that 
the law could not survive strict scrutiny because, even if the town’s interests in traffic safety and 
aesthetics were considered compelling governmental interests, the code was “hopelessly 
underinclusive.”  Id. (noting that signs bearing certain messages were “no greater an eyesore” 
than other types of signs, as well as the lack of evidence that signs bearing some messages are 
more detrimental to traffic safety than signs conveying favored content).   

Since Reed, courts have repeatedly recognized that distinguishing between signs based 
on content is unconstitutional.  For example, in Thomas v. Schroer, 116 F.3d 869 (W.D. Tenn. 
2015), a court relied upon Reed to enjoin the Tennessee Department of Transportation from 
enforcing state sign laws that subjected off-premise signs to more regulation than on-premise 
signs.  Id. at 875-76.  This decision was affirmed by the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals in 
Thomas v. Bright, 937 F.3d 721 (6th Cir. 2019), which held that the content-based nature of the 
sign regulations post-Reed was “neither a close call nor a difficult question.”  Id. at 729, 733 
(“Tennessee’s Billboard Act contains a non-severable regulation of speech based on the content 
of the message. Applied to [the plaintiff’s] billboard, it is, therefore, a content-based regulation 
of non-commercial speech, which subjects it to strict scrutiny”).  The State of Kentucky’s sign 
regulations were just thrown out on the same basis as the Thomas case.  See L.D. Mgmt. Co. v. 
Thomas, 2020 WL 1978387, at *4 (W.D. Ky. Apr. 24, 2020). 

Even more recently, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals weighed in on this issue.  In 
Reagan National Advertising, Inc. v. City of Austin, __ F.3d __, 2020 WL 5015455 (5th Cir. 
Aug. 25, 2020), two sign companies filed applications to convert existing off-premise signs 
(a/k/a billboards) to digital technology.  The city denied the applications because its ordinance 
did not allow off-premise signs to be digitized (even though signs bearing on-premise content 
could be digitized).  The sign companies sued arguing the ordinance was unconstitutional 
pursuant to Reed but the district court granted judgment in favor of the city.  The Fifth Circuit 
reversed, finding the ordinance content-based and unconstitutional under Reed.  The court noted 
that “to determine whether a sign is on-premises or off-premises, one must read the sign and ask: 
does it advertise ‘a business, person, activity, goods, products, or services not located on the site 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 
where the sign is installed, or that directs persons to any location not on that site.’”  Id. at *6.  
This fact rendered the code content-based and unconstitutional.  Id. at *6-11.  The City’s 
admitted intent to review the content on Railroad’s proposed signs as part of the review process 
is similarly unconstitutional.   

 
Moreover, the City’s strict regulation of signs in general runs afoul of the Georgia 

Supreme Court’s requirement that governmental bodies employ the “least restrictive means” 
when regulating speech activity.  E.g., Coffey v. Fayette County, 279 Ga. 111, 111 (2005) 
(“Coffey I”); Statesboro Publ’g Co. v. City of Sylvania, 271 Ga. 92, 95-96 (1999).  Under this 
standard, cities and counties must carry a heavy burden in order to justify their sign restrictions.  
Coffey v. Fayette County, 280 Ga. 656, 657-58 (2006).  In order to meet this high threshold, the 
Georgia Supreme Court requires that evidence be presented to support the regulations.  Id.  This 
is because Georgia law is the most protective in the nation toward the use of signs for free speech 
activity.  Coffey I, 279 Ga. at 111 (“This Court has interpreted the Georgia Constitution to 
provide even broader protection than the First Amendment”).  Clarkston cannot meet this strict 
standard as to its Sign Ordinance. 

 
We will also contend that the City’s zoning procedures, Sign Ordinance, zoning code, 

and/or zoning map have been adopted in an improper manner.  Georgia’s Zoning Procedures 
Law is mandatory and strict compliance is required.  We have made requests for the necessary 
documentation simultaneously herewith and will supplement this appeal upon receipt.  

 
Under Georgia law an application must be granted if the ordinance is invalid for any 

reason.  E.g., Tilley Properties, Inc. v. Bartow County, 261 Ga. 153, 165 (1991) (holding that 
“[w]here, as in this case, the zoning ordinance is invalid, there is no valid restriction on the 
property, and the appellant has the right under the law to use the property as it so desires”); 
Davidson Mineral Props., 257 Ga. at 216-17 (invalidating basis of denial and then mandating 
that applicant was authorized to proceed with proposed use).  As such, Railroad is entitled to the 
requested permits.   
 

If you have any questions regarding this appeal or need any additional information 
regarding the same, please do not hesitate to contact me.  I look forward to the hearing in front of 
the City Council.   
 

 Respectfully yours, 
 
 

 
E. Adam Webb 

 
EAW/ss 
 
Attachments/Enclosures 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 



From: Shawanna Qawiy <sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 4:03 PM
To: kshaw@railroadoutdoor.com
Subject: CSX Sign Permit Requests
 
Good Day,
 
The City is in receipt of  your request for sign permits.
 
A review of the four (4) sign permit applications from Railroad Outdoor, LLC  shows that all of the proposed
signs will be located on poles.
Poles signs are prohibited in the City of Clarkston;
 

1. 3611 Church Street- Pole Sign ( Billboard Sign)
a. Pole signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

2. 3874 East Ponce  de Leon Avenue  (Billboard Sign)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

3. CSX Outside LED I-285( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

4. CSX Inside LED I-285 ( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

 
Therefore, the submitted applications are DENIED.
 
You may resubmit the applications for review with the applicable required documents and information. Please
include the following for each sign (location/type) request;

1. Completion of the sign permit application ( page 2-b) with all related dimension(s) listed.
2. Actual (real) colored  renderings of the proposed sign on a site plan (at the actual location)  with the

proposed lettering/wording.
3. Completed Hold Harmless Form (attached) for each location.
4. Invoice for each sign location.

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me.
 
Thank you.
 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM
Planning & Development Director
 

 
1055 Rowland St. |  Clarkston, GA 30021
(O) 404-296-6489
(F)  404-296-6480   
SQawiy@cityofclarkston.com



 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “B” 



So
uth

 Fo
rk 

Pe
ac

htr
ee

 Cr
ee

k

Milham Park
Forty Oaks

Friendship Forest

Chur
ch 

St

E P
on

ce 
De

 Le
on

 Av
e

Stone Mountain Fwy

Mc
len

do
n D

r

Montreal Rd

Broc
kett

 Rd

Norman Rd

Lawrenceville Hwy

Market St

N Indian Creek Dr

No
rth

ern
 Av

e

Ot
ell

o A
ve

Mem
oria

l D
r

Glendale Rd

Erskine Rd

N Decatur Rd

Ro
wla

nd 
St

Me
ll A

ve

Francine Dr

De
lia

 D
r

Verdi Way

Re
illy

 Ln

Ro
ger

s S
t

S J
oll

y A
ve

Cr
ee

kd
ale

 D
r

Nielsen DrCasa Dr

Montre
al

Cir

Jolly Ave

Pecan St

Cooledge Rd

Pa
rkd

ale
Dr

Deleon Ct

Wa
rre

n A
ve

Sanden F erry
Dr

Indian Creek Way

Milam Cir

Brook Dr
Va

ugh
n S

t

Tobie Cir

Verona Dr

Flamingo Dr

Tolbert Dr

East Ave

Ju
ne

au
Ct

W Hill St

Wi
llia

ms
 St

Memorial College Ave

Ed
inb

urg
h D

r

Zemory Dr

Fern Dr

Murphy St

Lindmoor Dr

Barr Cir

Avon Ave
Ta

nn
er 

Dr

Linkw oo dL n

Rehoboth Dr

Anthony Dr

Milton St

To
bie

 C
t

Elmscourt Dr

Holly
He

dg
e R

d

Johns Rd

Deleon Dr

Idlewood Rd

Valaire Dr

Stoneview Cir

Poplar Dr

Te
xe

l L
n

Alcan Way

Gloucester Dr

Garfield Dr

Vista Brook Dr

Cle
ave

mark
Dr

Bishop Dr

Ford Pl

Artesia Dr

Dove Way

Robinson Ave

Cloudland Dr

Ma
yfi

eld
 D

rPiper Dr

Maxey Hill Dr

Lag oon Ct

Burgundy Rd

Marlborough Dr

Valley Cir

Ca
me

lot
 Ci

r

Hollywood Dr

Lantern View Ln

Clyde
dale

Dr

College Ave

Pe
nd

let
on

 Av
e

Clark St

Montreal Way

Giffor
d D

r

Sm
ith

St

Be lle Glade Dr

Hill St

Po
un

ds
 Ln

Mauck St

Lindon Ln

Valley Brook Rd

Franks Dr

Hill Blvd

De
nis

on
 D

r

Bontura Ct

Maclaren Dr

Gi
bb

on
s D

r

Ex
cha

nge

Ave Sandy Woods Ln

Debelle St

Windfield Cir

Cranford Dr

Prince Way

Dunleith Ct

Sim
ps

on
 D

r

Sa
ns

 So
uc

i W
ay

Hudson Rd

North Ave

Strat
ton

 Ln

Co
dy

 C
ir

Clayhill

Woodlawn Cir

Wheaton Ln

S Marlborough Dr

Stapp Dr

Gr
ee

nb
ria

r P
l

Sa
ms R

d

C am elo
t L

n

Sp
arr

ow
 Ln

Tobie Grant Ln

Bu ice D r

Alcove Dr

Marvin Lee Dr

Mell Pl

Bushton Ct

Wood
lan

d A
ve

Castle Rock Way

Gl
yn

n O
ak

s D
r Jamison Pl

Camelot Ct

Market Crst

Orchard St

Bailey Rd

Lantern Wood Dr

Caintal Ct

C am
de

n Walk

Indian Creek Ln

Casa Woods Ln

Bacon St

Bonnie Glenn Ln

Va
nc

ou
ve

r D
r

Rayford Trl

Market Walk

W Smith St

Back Trl

Mchenry Dr

Brookdale Pl

Chewning Dr

Frazier W alk

GreenbriarCi r

Cardiff Way

Ca nadian Way

Lovejoy St

Moncrief Cir

Rufus HendersonDr

Mc
ke

nz
ie 

Ct

Medley Rd

Haralson Rd

Gibbons Ln

Delia Ct

Needham Dr

Spruce Valley Dr

Franks Ct

Carrington PointeSettlement Rd

Air
lie 

Dr

Me
lros

e Dr

Clarkston Industrial Blvd

Gablewood Ct

Lester St

Sprucewood Dr

Oa
kbr

ook Ln

Deleon Ln
Nielsen Ct

Cr
es

ce
nt 

Ce
nte

r B
lvd

Sta
nw

yc
k T

er

Artesia Cir

Wilson St

Cemetery Ave

Skylark Dr

Gl
en

wy
ck

 Pl

Park North Blvd

Sett le
me

n t
L n

Cousins Way

Lagoon Way

Glouc ester Way

Casa
 Ct

Bla
ck

sto
ne

 D
r

Tribble St

Wi
nn

ipe
g T

rl

Emerald Brook Ln

Harvest Run

Castletree Ct

Francine Ct

Calh oun
St

Greystone Ct E

Edinburgh Way

Wetherburn Dr

Montreal Creek Ct

Toronto Trl

Wagoner St

Tre
nt C

t

Tweed Pl

On
tar

io 
Ct

Ec
ho

 W
oo

ds
 C

tAnna Maria Ct

Qu
eb

ec
 C

t

E Castl
e C

t Old Mill Ct

Creekdale Ct

Cormen Ave

Chalmers Ct

Sanden Ferry Ct

Lantern Ridge Dr

Montreal Rd

Fern Dr

Wi
llia

ms St

Hill St

Smith St

Rogers St

Montreal Rd

Brocke
tt R

d

East Ave

Mem
oria

l D
r

Gi
ffo

rd 
Dr

N Ind
ian

Cr
ee

k D
r

Debelle St

N Decatur Rd

Stone Mountain Fwy

Carroll P ark Dr

§̈¦285

§̈¦285

£¤78

£¤29

£¤78

UV10

£¤29

£¤78

§̈¦285

NR-CD

I

NR-CD

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-2

NC-1

I

I

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-3

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NR-3

RC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

RC

NC-2

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NC-2

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

TC
TC

TC

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1RC

RC

NR-3

NR-3

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-CD

NC-2

NC-2

NC-2

NR-3

NR-3
NR-3

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1
NC-1

NR-1

NC-2

NC-1

NR-CD

NC-1

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NR-3

NC-2

NR-1

NR-3

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NC-1 NC-2

NC-2

NR-CD

I

I

I

Hugh Spivey Lake

Twin Brothers Lake

ZONING - CITY OF CLARKSTON, GA

0 0.25 0.50.125 Miles N

Zoning

I - Light Industrial

NC-1 - Neighborhood Commercial

NC-2 - Commercial

NR-1 - Residential Low

NR-2 - Residential Medium

NR-3 - Residential High

NR-CD - Residential Multi

RC - Residential / Commercial

TC - Town Center

Clarkston City Limits

ADOPTED:  January 1, 2016







CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 

SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE 
@ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3874 E Ponce de Leon Ave.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   City Council to discuss/review appeal by Railroad Outdoor LLC of City of Clarkston City 
Manager’s denial of a sign permit application from Railroad Outdoor LLC to erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE 
@ 50’ OAH billboard sign on the property located at 3874 E Ponce de Leon Ave.     
 
BACKGROUND/IMPACT:    
City received referenced sign permit application (copy enclosed) on September 10, 2020, and subsequently 
submitted a denial on September 14, 2020 (copy enclosed), based on the City’s prohibition of pole signs.  
Applicant submitted a reply letter on September 16, 2020 (copy enclosed), appealing the City’s decision, 
suggesting that the City look for the most specific applicable regulations for the denial.  Our review found 
several specific City code references requiring denial of the application, specifically: 
 

1. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).  
2. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).   

 
City subsequently provided the applicant the specific denial reasons in a letter dated September 22, 2020 
(copy enclosed) as well as advising the applicant of the appeal date/time, October 6, 2002, beginning at 7 
pm.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Council to deny applicant’s sign permit application appeal.   

ITEM NO:  E10 

ACTION TYPE: 
BUSINESS APPEAL 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO 
Pages: 17 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I. GOMEZ,  
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   

















WEBB, KLASE & LEMOND, LLC 
AT T O R N E Y S  AT  L AW  

1900 THE EXCHANGE, S.E.  •  SUITE 480  •  ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30339 

(770) 444-9325  •  (770) 217-9950 (facsimile) 

 
Author’s Direct Dial:                        Email Address: 
    (770) 444-0773            Adam@WebbLLC.com 

 
September 16, 2020 

 
VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM 
Planning & Development Director 
City of Clarkston 
1055 Rowland Street  
Clarkston, GA 30021 
sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com 
 
 Re: Sign Applications for Railroad Outdoor, LLC 
 
Dear Ms. Qawiy: 
 
 I write to you in your capacity as Director of Planning and Development for the City of 
Clarkston on behalf of my client Railroad Outdoor, LLC (“Railroad”).  Pursuant to Section 15.5-
26(b)(1) of the Clarkston Code of Ordinances, please accept this letter as Railroad’s written 
notice of appeal from the City’s denial of my client’s four sign applications.  Based on my 
review of the City’s denial (Exh. A hereto) and the Chapter 15.5 Signs of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, I wanted to outline my client’s arguments on appeal.  These articulated grounds for 
appeal are not exhaustive, and Railroad reserves the right to present additional arguments prior to 
and at the City Council appeal hearing. 
 

All four of my client’s sign applications were denied on the grounds that “Pole signs are 
not permitted in the City of Clarkston.”  Denial of my client’s applications on this basis was 
incorrect for several reasons.  First, as you note in your September 14 email, all four of my 
client’s applications were for billboards, which are specifically governed by Section 15.5-63 of 
the Clarkston Code of Ordinances.  Your attempt to rely upon a general prohibition on pole signs 
rather than apply the more specific code section that governs billboards is inconsistent with 
Georgia law, which provides that the terms of a specific statute govern over those of a more 
general statute.  E.g., Denhardt v. Sparks, 844 S.E.2d 192, 195 (Ga. Ct. App. 2020); Vineville 
Capital Group, LLC v. McCook, 766 S.E.2d 156, 160 (Ga. Ct. App. 2014) (“the terms of a 
specific statute govern over those of a more general statute”); also Bellsouth 
Telecommunications, LLC v. Cobb County, 824 S.E.2d 233, 239 (Ga. 2019) (“the more specific 
statute governs over the more general one”).  Had you properly applied the more specific 
billboard regulation, the basis of denial would not have been applicable.   

 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

Section 15.5-63 allows billboards in the City of Clarkston that are 672 square feet in sign 
area and 50 feet in height, so long as the billboards are on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or 
I; are located on parcels adjacent to US Highway 78 or Interstate 285 and oriented thereto; and 
comply with the standards set by Georgia Department of Transportation as to the use of digital 
technology.  See Section 15.5-63(a)-(g).  My client’s applications meet all of these criteria and 
should have been approved.  Railroad is aware of several billboards that have been erected in 
Clarkston despite the ordinance’s general prohibition on pole signs.  It is plainly not applicable to 
billboards. 

 
My client’s applications for billboards on property owned by CSX Railroad should also 

have been granted.  According to the City’s Zoning Map (Exh. B hereto), the railroad property 
within the City of Clarkston has not been zoned.  Therefore, Georgia law requires that my client 
be allowed to install the requested signs.  The general rule is that the owner of property has the 
right to use their property in any lawful manner.  E.g., Cherokee County v. Martin, 253 Ga. App. 
395, 396 (2002); Picadilly Place Condo. Ass’n v. Frantz, 210 Ga. App. 676, 678 (1993).  
Because zoning regulations restrict this right, they must be strictly construed in favor of the 
property owner, and more specifically, the owner’s free use of  their property.  DeKalb County v. 
Post Apartment Homes, L.P., 234 Ga. App. 409, 410(1) (1998); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 396; 
Glynn County v. Palmatary, 247 Ga. 570, 574 (1981); also Fayette County v. Seagraves, 245 Ga. 
196, 197-98, 264 S.E.2d 13 (1980).  Consequently, land use limitations must (i) be clearly 
established, (ii) be enforced only as to their plain and explicit terms, and (iii) any ambiguities 
therein must be resolved in the owner’s favor.   E.g., Northside Corp. v. City of Atlanta, 278 Ga. 
416  (2005); JWIC, Inc. v. City of Sylvester, 278 Ga. 416, 417 (2004); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 
396; Picadilly, 210 Ga. App. at 678; Bo Fancy Productions v. Rabun County Bd. of Comm’s, 
267 Ga. 341, 343 (1996); Beugnot v. Coweta County, 231 Ga. App. 715, 722 (1998). 

 
Here, the CSX property is unzoned and thus not restricted by any applicable zoning 

regulations.  Although the CSX property has been inside the City limits for decades, the City has 
chosen not to zone the property.  As such, CSX has never had any opportunity to appear before 
the City Council to show the City what zoning and land use restrictions would be appropriate for 
the railroad property.  Thus, any restrictions being enforced by the City are invalid and void.  
E.g., Davidson Mineral Properties, Inc. v. Monroe County, 257 Ga. 215, 217 (1987) (holding 
county could not restrict use of property).  Because the City’s official zoning map 
unambiguously shows that the railroad property has not been zoned, the requested billboards 
must be allowed. 

 
Beyond these errors in misapplying the City’s Code of Ordinances and instances of 

undue discretion, Railroad also believes that the City’s guidelines with respect to billboard signs 
regulate on the basis of content.  Why else would your September 14 email request that my client 
resubmit renderings of the proposed signs with the proposed wording of the sign.  In the decision 
of Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 135 S. Ct. 2218, 2227 (2015), the Supreme Court held that 
“[g]overnment regulation of speech is content-based if a law applies to particular speech because 
of the topic discussed or the idea or message expressed.”  Id. at 2227 (citations omitted).  The 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 
Court deemed this rule to be “commonsense” and requires a reviewing court to determine 
whether a law “‘on its face’ draws distinctions based on the message a speaker conveys.”  Id. 
 

The Court then devoted several pages of its opinion to rejecting the rationales of the 
lower courts for finding that the law was content-neutral.  Id. at 2227-31.  For instance, the Court 
found that the government’s motives in adopting the law are irrelevant if the law regulates by 
content on its face.  Id. at 2228 (“Innocent motives do not eliminate the danger of censorship 
presented by a facially content-based statute, as future government officials may one day wield 
such statutes to suppress disfavored speech”).  The Court also noted that “a speech regulation 
targeted at specific subject matter is content-based even if it does not discriminate among 
viewpoints within that subject matter.”  Id. at 2230. 

The Court then analyzed whether the content-based law could survive strict scrutiny, 
“which requires the Government to prove that the restriction furthers a compelling interest and is 
narrowly tailored to achieve that interest.”  Id. at 2231 (citations omitted).  The Court held that 
the law could not survive strict scrutiny because, even if the town’s interests in traffic safety and 
aesthetics were considered compelling governmental interests, the code was “hopelessly 
underinclusive.”  Id. (noting that signs bearing certain messages were “no greater an eyesore” 
than other types of signs, as well as the lack of evidence that signs bearing some messages are 
more detrimental to traffic safety than signs conveying favored content).   

Since Reed, courts have repeatedly recognized that distinguishing between signs based 
on content is unconstitutional.  For example, in Thomas v. Schroer, 116 F.3d 869 (W.D. Tenn. 
2015), a court relied upon Reed to enjoin the Tennessee Department of Transportation from 
enforcing state sign laws that subjected off-premise signs to more regulation than on-premise 
signs.  Id. at 875-76.  This decision was affirmed by the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals in 
Thomas v. Bright, 937 F.3d 721 (6th Cir. 2019), which held that the content-based nature of the 
sign regulations post-Reed was “neither a close call nor a difficult question.”  Id. at 729, 733 
(“Tennessee’s Billboard Act contains a non-severable regulation of speech based on the content 
of the message. Applied to [the plaintiff’s] billboard, it is, therefore, a content-based regulation 
of non-commercial speech, which subjects it to strict scrutiny”).  The State of Kentucky’s sign 
regulations were just thrown out on the same basis as the Thomas case.  See L.D. Mgmt. Co. v. 
Thomas, 2020 WL 1978387, at *4 (W.D. Ky. Apr. 24, 2020). 

Even more recently, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals weighed in on this issue.  In 
Reagan National Advertising, Inc. v. City of Austin, __ F.3d __, 2020 WL 5015455 (5th Cir. 
Aug. 25, 2020), two sign companies filed applications to convert existing off-premise signs 
(a/k/a billboards) to digital technology.  The city denied the applications because its ordinance 
did not allow off-premise signs to be digitized (even though signs bearing on-premise content 
could be digitized).  The sign companies sued arguing the ordinance was unconstitutional 
pursuant to Reed but the district court granted judgment in favor of the city.  The Fifth Circuit 
reversed, finding the ordinance content-based and unconstitutional under Reed.  The court noted 
that “to determine whether a sign is on-premises or off-premises, one must read the sign and ask: 
does it advertise ‘a business, person, activity, goods, products, or services not located on the site 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 
where the sign is installed, or that directs persons to any location not on that site.’”  Id. at *6.  
This fact rendered the code content-based and unconstitutional.  Id. at *6-11.  The City’s 
admitted intent to review the content on Railroad’s proposed signs as part of the review process 
is similarly unconstitutional.   

 
Moreover, the City’s strict regulation of signs in general runs afoul of the Georgia 

Supreme Court’s requirement that governmental bodies employ the “least restrictive means” 
when regulating speech activity.  E.g., Coffey v. Fayette County, 279 Ga. 111, 111 (2005) 
(“Coffey I”); Statesboro Publ’g Co. v. City of Sylvania, 271 Ga. 92, 95-96 (1999).  Under this 
standard, cities and counties must carry a heavy burden in order to justify their sign restrictions.  
Coffey v. Fayette County, 280 Ga. 656, 657-58 (2006).  In order to meet this high threshold, the 
Georgia Supreme Court requires that evidence be presented to support the regulations.  Id.  This 
is because Georgia law is the most protective in the nation toward the use of signs for free speech 
activity.  Coffey I, 279 Ga. at 111 (“This Court has interpreted the Georgia Constitution to 
provide even broader protection than the First Amendment”).  Clarkston cannot meet this strict 
standard as to its Sign Ordinance. 

 
We will also contend that the City’s zoning procedures, Sign Ordinance, zoning code, 

and/or zoning map have been adopted in an improper manner.  Georgia’s Zoning Procedures 
Law is mandatory and strict compliance is required.  We have made requests for the necessary 
documentation simultaneously herewith and will supplement this appeal upon receipt.  

 
Under Georgia law an application must be granted if the ordinance is invalid for any 

reason.  E.g., Tilley Properties, Inc. v. Bartow County, 261 Ga. 153, 165 (1991) (holding that 
“[w]here, as in this case, the zoning ordinance is invalid, there is no valid restriction on the 
property, and the appellant has the right under the law to use the property as it so desires”); 
Davidson Mineral Props., 257 Ga. at 216-17 (invalidating basis of denial and then mandating 
that applicant was authorized to proceed with proposed use).  As such, Railroad is entitled to the 
requested permits.   
 

If you have any questions regarding this appeal or need any additional information 
regarding the same, please do not hesitate to contact me.  I look forward to the hearing in front of 
the City Council.   
 

 Respectfully yours, 
 
 

 
E. Adam Webb 

 
EAW/ss 
 
Attachments/Enclosures 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 



From: Shawanna Qawiy <sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 4:03 PM
To: kshaw@railroadoutdoor.com
Subject: CSX Sign Permit Requests
 
Good Day,
 
The City is in receipt of  your request for sign permits.
 
A review of the four (4) sign permit applications from Railroad Outdoor, LLC  shows that all of the proposed
signs will be located on poles.
Poles signs are prohibited in the City of Clarkston;
 

1. 3611 Church Street- Pole Sign ( Billboard Sign)
a. Pole signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

2. 3874 East Ponce  de Leon Avenue  (Billboard Sign)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

3. CSX Outside LED I-285( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

4. CSX Inside LED I-285 ( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

 
Therefore, the submitted applications are DENIED.
 
You may resubmit the applications for review with the applicable required documents and information. Please
include the following for each sign (location/type) request;

1. Completion of the sign permit application ( page 2-b) with all related dimension(s) listed.
2. Actual (real) colored  renderings of the proposed sign on a site plan (at the actual location)  with the

proposed lettering/wording.
3. Completed Hold Harmless Form (attached) for each location.
4. Invoice for each sign location.

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me.
 
Thank you.
 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM
Planning & Development Director
 

 
1055 Rowland St. |  Clarkston, GA 30021
(O) 404-296-6489
(F)  404-296-6480   
SQawiy@cityofclarkston.com



 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “B” 



So
uth

 Fo
rk 

Pe
ac

htr
ee

 Cr
ee

k

Milham Park
Forty Oaks

Friendship Forest

Chur
ch 

St

E P
on

ce 
De

 Le
on

 Av
e

Stone Mountain Fwy

Mc
len

do
n D

r

Montreal Rd

Broc
kett

 Rd

Norman Rd

Lawrenceville Hwy

Market St

N Indian Creek Dr

No
rth

ern
 Av

e

Ot
ell

o A
ve

Mem
oria

l D
r

Glendale Rd

Erskine Rd

N Decatur Rd

Ro
wla

nd 
St

Me
ll A

ve

Francine Dr

De
lia

 D
r

Verdi Way

Re
illy

 Ln

Ro
ger

s S
t

S J
oll

y A
ve

Cr
ee

kd
ale

 D
r

Nielsen DrCasa Dr

Montre
al

Cir

Jolly Ave

Pecan St

Cooledge Rd

Pa
rkd

ale
Dr

Deleon Ct

Wa
rre

n A
ve

Sanden F erry
Dr

Indian Creek Way

Milam Cir

Brook Dr
Va

ugh
n S

t

Tobie Cir

Verona Dr

Flamingo Dr

Tolbert Dr

East Ave

Ju
ne

au
Ct

W Hill St

Wi
llia

ms
 St

Memorial College Ave

Ed
inb

urg
h D

r

Zemory Dr

Fern Dr

Murphy St

Lindmoor Dr

Barr Cir

Avon Ave
Ta

nn
er 

Dr

Linkw oo dL n

Rehoboth Dr

Anthony Dr

Milton St

To
bie

 C
t

Elmscourt Dr

Holly
He

dg
e R

d

Johns Rd

Deleon Dr

Idlewood Rd

Valaire Dr

Stoneview Cir

Poplar Dr

Te
xe

l L
n

Alcan Way

Gloucester Dr

Garfield Dr

Vista Brook Dr

Cle
ave

mark
Dr

Bishop Dr

Ford Pl

Artesia Dr

Dove Way

Robinson Ave

Cloudland Dr

Ma
yfi

eld
 D

rPiper Dr

Maxey Hill Dr

Lag oon Ct

Burgundy Rd

Marlborough Dr

Valley Cir

Ca
me

lot
 Ci

r

Hollywood Dr

Lantern View Ln

Clyde
dale

Dr

College Ave

Pe
nd

let
on

 Av
e

Clark St

Montreal Way

Giffor
d D

r

Sm
ith

St

Be lle Glade Dr

Hill St

Po
un

ds
 Ln

Mauck St

Lindon Ln

Valley Brook Rd

Franks Dr

Hill Blvd

De
nis

on
 D

r

Bontura Ct

Maclaren Dr

Gi
bb

on
s D

r

Ex
cha

nge

Ave Sandy Woods Ln

Debelle St

Windfield Cir

Cranford Dr

Prince Way

Dunleith Ct

Sim
ps

on
 D

r

Sa
ns

 So
uc

i W
ay

Hudson Rd

North Ave

Strat
ton

 Ln

Co
dy

 C
ir

Clayhill

Woodlawn Cir

Wheaton Ln

S Marlborough Dr

Stapp Dr

Gr
ee

nb
ria

r P
l

Sa
ms R

d

C am elo
t L

n

Sp
arr

ow
 Ln

Tobie Grant Ln

Bu ice D r

Alcove Dr

Marvin Lee Dr

Mell Pl

Bushton Ct

Wood
lan

d A
ve

Castle Rock Way

Gl
yn

n O
ak

s D
r Jamison Pl

Camelot Ct

Market Crst

Orchard St

Bailey Rd

Lantern Wood Dr

Caintal Ct

C am
de

n Walk

Indian Creek Ln

Casa Woods Ln

Bacon St

Bonnie Glenn Ln

Va
nc

ou
ve

r D
r

Rayford Trl

Market Walk

W Smith St

Back Trl

Mchenry Dr

Brookdale Pl

Chewning Dr

Frazier W alk

GreenbriarCi r

Cardiff Way

Ca nadian Way

Lovejoy St

Moncrief Cir

Rufus HendersonDr

Mc
ke

nz
ie 

Ct

Medley Rd

Haralson Rd

Gibbons Ln

Delia Ct

Needham Dr

Spruce Valley Dr

Franks Ct

Carrington PointeSettlement Rd

Air
lie 

Dr

Me
lros

e Dr

Clarkston Industrial Blvd

Gablewood Ct

Lester St

Sprucewood Dr

Oa
kbr

ook Ln

Deleon Ln
Nielsen Ct

Cr
es

ce
nt 

Ce
nte

r B
lvd

Sta
nw

yc
k T

er

Artesia Cir

Wilson St

Cemetery Ave

Skylark Dr

Gl
en

wy
ck

 Pl

Park North Blvd

Sett le
me

n t
L n

Cousins Way

Lagoon Way

Glouc ester Way

Casa
 Ct

Bla
ck

sto
ne

 D
r

Tribble St

Wi
nn

ipe
g T

rl

Emerald Brook Ln

Harvest Run

Castletree Ct

Francine Ct

Calh oun
St

Greystone Ct E

Edinburgh Way

Wetherburn Dr

Montreal Creek Ct

Toronto Trl

Wagoner St

Tre
nt C

t

Tweed Pl

On
tar

io 
Ct

Ec
ho

 W
oo

ds
 C

tAnna Maria Ct

Qu
eb

ec
 C

t

E Castl
e C

t Old Mill Ct

Creekdale Ct

Cormen Ave

Chalmers Ct

Sanden Ferry Ct

Lantern Ridge Dr

Montreal Rd

Fern Dr

Wi
llia

ms St

Hill St

Smith St

Rogers St

Montreal Rd

Brocke
tt R

d

East Ave

Mem
oria

l D
r

Gi
ffo

rd 
Dr

N Ind
ian

Cr
ee

k D
r

Debelle St

N Decatur Rd

Stone Mountain Fwy

Carroll P ark Dr

§̈¦285

§̈¦285

£¤78

£¤29

£¤78

UV10

£¤29

£¤78

§̈¦285

NR-CD

I

NR-CD

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-2

NC-1

I

I

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-3

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NR-3

RC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

RC

NC-2

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NC-2

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

TC
TC

TC

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1RC

RC

NR-3

NR-3

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-CD

NC-2

NC-2

NC-2

NR-3

NR-3
NR-3

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1
NC-1

NR-1

NC-2

NC-1

NR-CD

NC-1

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NR-3

NC-2

NR-1

NR-3

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NC-1 NC-2

NC-2

NR-CD

I

I

I

Hugh Spivey Lake

Twin Brothers Lake

ZONING - CITY OF CLARKSTON, GA

0 0.25 0.50.125 Miles N

Zoning

I - Light Industrial

NC-1 - Neighborhood Commercial

NC-2 - Commercial

NR-1 - Residential Low

NR-2 - Residential Medium

NR-3 - Residential High

NR-CD - Residential Multi

RC - Residential / Commercial

TC - Town Center

Clarkston City Limits

ADOPTED:  January 1, 2016







CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 

SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE 
@ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just outside (East) 
of I-285.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   City Council to discuss/review appeal by Railroad Outdoor LLC of City of Clarkston City 
Manager’s denial of a sign permit application from Railroad Outdoor LLC to erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE 
@ 50’ OAH billboard sign on the property located at the southerly portion of Church St, just outside of 
(East) of I-285.     
 
BACKGROUND/IMPACT:    
City received referenced sign permit application (copy enclosed) on September 10, 2020, and subsequently 
submitted a denial on September 14, 2020 (copy enclosed), based on the City’s prohibition of pole signs.  
Applicant submitted a reply letter on September 16, 2020 (copy enclosed), appealing the City’s decision, 
suggesting that the City look for the most specific applicable regulations for the denial.  Our review found 
several specific City code references requiring denial of the application, specifically: 
 

1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-
41,3). 

2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4).  
3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 

15.5-63,b).  The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible 
zoning designations.   

4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).  
5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).   

 
City subsequently provided the applicant the specific denial reasons in a letter dated September 22, 2020 
(copy enclosed) as well as advising the applicant of the appeal date/time, October 6, 2002, beginning at 7 
pm.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Council to deny applicant’s sign permit application appeal.   

ITEM NO:  E11 

ACTION TYPE: 
BUSINESS APPEAL 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO 
Pages: 17 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I. GOMEZ,  
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   

















WEBB, KLASE & LEMOND, LLC 
AT T O R N E Y S  AT  L AW  

1900 THE EXCHANGE, S.E.  •  SUITE 480  •  ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30339 

(770) 444-9325  •  (770) 217-9950 (facsimile) 

 
Author’s Direct Dial:                        Email Address: 
    (770) 444-0773            Adam@WebbLLC.com 

 
September 16, 2020 

 
VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM 
Planning & Development Director 
City of Clarkston 
1055 Rowland Street  
Clarkston, GA 30021 
sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com 
 
 Re: Sign Applications for Railroad Outdoor, LLC 
 
Dear Ms. Qawiy: 
 
 I write to you in your capacity as Director of Planning and Development for the City of 
Clarkston on behalf of my client Railroad Outdoor, LLC (“Railroad”).  Pursuant to Section 15.5-
26(b)(1) of the Clarkston Code of Ordinances, please accept this letter as Railroad’s written 
notice of appeal from the City’s denial of my client’s four sign applications.  Based on my 
review of the City’s denial (Exh. A hereto) and the Chapter 15.5 Signs of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, I wanted to outline my client’s arguments on appeal.  These articulated grounds for 
appeal are not exhaustive, and Railroad reserves the right to present additional arguments prior to 
and at the City Council appeal hearing. 
 

All four of my client’s sign applications were denied on the grounds that “Pole signs are 
not permitted in the City of Clarkston.”  Denial of my client’s applications on this basis was 
incorrect for several reasons.  First, as you note in your September 14 email, all four of my 
client’s applications were for billboards, which are specifically governed by Section 15.5-63 of 
the Clarkston Code of Ordinances.  Your attempt to rely upon a general prohibition on pole signs 
rather than apply the more specific code section that governs billboards is inconsistent with 
Georgia law, which provides that the terms of a specific statute govern over those of a more 
general statute.  E.g., Denhardt v. Sparks, 844 S.E.2d 192, 195 (Ga. Ct. App. 2020); Vineville 
Capital Group, LLC v. McCook, 766 S.E.2d 156, 160 (Ga. Ct. App. 2014) (“the terms of a 
specific statute govern over those of a more general statute”); also Bellsouth 
Telecommunications, LLC v. Cobb County, 824 S.E.2d 233, 239 (Ga. 2019) (“the more specific 
statute governs over the more general one”).  Had you properly applied the more specific 
billboard regulation, the basis of denial would not have been applicable.   

 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

Section 15.5-63 allows billboards in the City of Clarkston that are 672 square feet in sign 
area and 50 feet in height, so long as the billboards are on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or 
I; are located on parcels adjacent to US Highway 78 or Interstate 285 and oriented thereto; and 
comply with the standards set by Georgia Department of Transportation as to the use of digital 
technology.  See Section 15.5-63(a)-(g).  My client’s applications meet all of these criteria and 
should have been approved.  Railroad is aware of several billboards that have been erected in 
Clarkston despite the ordinance’s general prohibition on pole signs.  It is plainly not applicable to 
billboards. 

 
My client’s applications for billboards on property owned by CSX Railroad should also 

have been granted.  According to the City’s Zoning Map (Exh. B hereto), the railroad property 
within the City of Clarkston has not been zoned.  Therefore, Georgia law requires that my client 
be allowed to install the requested signs.  The general rule is that the owner of property has the 
right to use their property in any lawful manner.  E.g., Cherokee County v. Martin, 253 Ga. App. 
395, 396 (2002); Picadilly Place Condo. Ass’n v. Frantz, 210 Ga. App. 676, 678 (1993).  
Because zoning regulations restrict this right, they must be strictly construed in favor of the 
property owner, and more specifically, the owner’s free use of  their property.  DeKalb County v. 
Post Apartment Homes, L.P., 234 Ga. App. 409, 410(1) (1998); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 396; 
Glynn County v. Palmatary, 247 Ga. 570, 574 (1981); also Fayette County v. Seagraves, 245 Ga. 
196, 197-98, 264 S.E.2d 13 (1980).  Consequently, land use limitations must (i) be clearly 
established, (ii) be enforced only as to their plain and explicit terms, and (iii) any ambiguities 
therein must be resolved in the owner’s favor.   E.g., Northside Corp. v. City of Atlanta, 278 Ga. 
416  (2005); JWIC, Inc. v. City of Sylvester, 278 Ga. 416, 417 (2004); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 
396; Picadilly, 210 Ga. App. at 678; Bo Fancy Productions v. Rabun County Bd. of Comm’s, 
267 Ga. 341, 343 (1996); Beugnot v. Coweta County, 231 Ga. App. 715, 722 (1998). 

 
Here, the CSX property is unzoned and thus not restricted by any applicable zoning 

regulations.  Although the CSX property has been inside the City limits for decades, the City has 
chosen not to zone the property.  As such, CSX has never had any opportunity to appear before 
the City Council to show the City what zoning and land use restrictions would be appropriate for 
the railroad property.  Thus, any restrictions being enforced by the City are invalid and void.  
E.g., Davidson Mineral Properties, Inc. v. Monroe County, 257 Ga. 215, 217 (1987) (holding 
county could not restrict use of property).  Because the City’s official zoning map 
unambiguously shows that the railroad property has not been zoned, the requested billboards 
must be allowed. 

 
Beyond these errors in misapplying the City’s Code of Ordinances and instances of 

undue discretion, Railroad also believes that the City’s guidelines with respect to billboard signs 
regulate on the basis of content.  Why else would your September 14 email request that my client 
resubmit renderings of the proposed signs with the proposed wording of the sign.  In the decision 
of Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 135 S. Ct. 2218, 2227 (2015), the Supreme Court held that 
“[g]overnment regulation of speech is content-based if a law applies to particular speech because 
of the topic discussed or the idea or message expressed.”  Id. at 2227 (citations omitted).  The 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 
Court deemed this rule to be “commonsense” and requires a reviewing court to determine 
whether a law “‘on its face’ draws distinctions based on the message a speaker conveys.”  Id. 
 

The Court then devoted several pages of its opinion to rejecting the rationales of the 
lower courts for finding that the law was content-neutral.  Id. at 2227-31.  For instance, the Court 
found that the government’s motives in adopting the law are irrelevant if the law regulates by 
content on its face.  Id. at 2228 (“Innocent motives do not eliminate the danger of censorship 
presented by a facially content-based statute, as future government officials may one day wield 
such statutes to suppress disfavored speech”).  The Court also noted that “a speech regulation 
targeted at specific subject matter is content-based even if it does not discriminate among 
viewpoints within that subject matter.”  Id. at 2230. 

The Court then analyzed whether the content-based law could survive strict scrutiny, 
“which requires the Government to prove that the restriction furthers a compelling interest and is 
narrowly tailored to achieve that interest.”  Id. at 2231 (citations omitted).  The Court held that 
the law could not survive strict scrutiny because, even if the town’s interests in traffic safety and 
aesthetics were considered compelling governmental interests, the code was “hopelessly 
underinclusive.”  Id. (noting that signs bearing certain messages were “no greater an eyesore” 
than other types of signs, as well as the lack of evidence that signs bearing some messages are 
more detrimental to traffic safety than signs conveying favored content).   

Since Reed, courts have repeatedly recognized that distinguishing between signs based 
on content is unconstitutional.  For example, in Thomas v. Schroer, 116 F.3d 869 (W.D. Tenn. 
2015), a court relied upon Reed to enjoin the Tennessee Department of Transportation from 
enforcing state sign laws that subjected off-premise signs to more regulation than on-premise 
signs.  Id. at 875-76.  This decision was affirmed by the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals in 
Thomas v. Bright, 937 F.3d 721 (6th Cir. 2019), which held that the content-based nature of the 
sign regulations post-Reed was “neither a close call nor a difficult question.”  Id. at 729, 733 
(“Tennessee’s Billboard Act contains a non-severable regulation of speech based on the content 
of the message. Applied to [the plaintiff’s] billboard, it is, therefore, a content-based regulation 
of non-commercial speech, which subjects it to strict scrutiny”).  The State of Kentucky’s sign 
regulations were just thrown out on the same basis as the Thomas case.  See L.D. Mgmt. Co. v. 
Thomas, 2020 WL 1978387, at *4 (W.D. Ky. Apr. 24, 2020). 

Even more recently, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals weighed in on this issue.  In 
Reagan National Advertising, Inc. v. City of Austin, __ F.3d __, 2020 WL 5015455 (5th Cir. 
Aug. 25, 2020), two sign companies filed applications to convert existing off-premise signs 
(a/k/a billboards) to digital technology.  The city denied the applications because its ordinance 
did not allow off-premise signs to be digitized (even though signs bearing on-premise content 
could be digitized).  The sign companies sued arguing the ordinance was unconstitutional 
pursuant to Reed but the district court granted judgment in favor of the city.  The Fifth Circuit 
reversed, finding the ordinance content-based and unconstitutional under Reed.  The court noted 
that “to determine whether a sign is on-premises or off-premises, one must read the sign and ask: 
does it advertise ‘a business, person, activity, goods, products, or services not located on the site 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 
where the sign is installed, or that directs persons to any location not on that site.’”  Id. at *6.  
This fact rendered the code content-based and unconstitutional.  Id. at *6-11.  The City’s 
admitted intent to review the content on Railroad’s proposed signs as part of the review process 
is similarly unconstitutional.   

 
Moreover, the City’s strict regulation of signs in general runs afoul of the Georgia 

Supreme Court’s requirement that governmental bodies employ the “least restrictive means” 
when regulating speech activity.  E.g., Coffey v. Fayette County, 279 Ga. 111, 111 (2005) 
(“Coffey I”); Statesboro Publ’g Co. v. City of Sylvania, 271 Ga. 92, 95-96 (1999).  Under this 
standard, cities and counties must carry a heavy burden in order to justify their sign restrictions.  
Coffey v. Fayette County, 280 Ga. 656, 657-58 (2006).  In order to meet this high threshold, the 
Georgia Supreme Court requires that evidence be presented to support the regulations.  Id.  This 
is because Georgia law is the most protective in the nation toward the use of signs for free speech 
activity.  Coffey I, 279 Ga. at 111 (“This Court has interpreted the Georgia Constitution to 
provide even broader protection than the First Amendment”).  Clarkston cannot meet this strict 
standard as to its Sign Ordinance. 

 
We will also contend that the City’s zoning procedures, Sign Ordinance, zoning code, 

and/or zoning map have been adopted in an improper manner.  Georgia’s Zoning Procedures 
Law is mandatory and strict compliance is required.  We have made requests for the necessary 
documentation simultaneously herewith and will supplement this appeal upon receipt.  

 
Under Georgia law an application must be granted if the ordinance is invalid for any 

reason.  E.g., Tilley Properties, Inc. v. Bartow County, 261 Ga. 153, 165 (1991) (holding that 
“[w]here, as in this case, the zoning ordinance is invalid, there is no valid restriction on the 
property, and the appellant has the right under the law to use the property as it so desires”); 
Davidson Mineral Props., 257 Ga. at 216-17 (invalidating basis of denial and then mandating 
that applicant was authorized to proceed with proposed use).  As such, Railroad is entitled to the 
requested permits.   
 

If you have any questions regarding this appeal or need any additional information 
regarding the same, please do not hesitate to contact me.  I look forward to the hearing in front of 
the City Council.   
 

 Respectfully yours, 
 
 

 
E. Adam Webb 

 
EAW/ss 
 
Attachments/Enclosures 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 



From: Shawanna Qawiy <sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 4:03 PM
To: kshaw@railroadoutdoor.com
Subject: CSX Sign Permit Requests
 
Good Day,
 
The City is in receipt of  your request for sign permits.
 
A review of the four (4) sign permit applications from Railroad Outdoor, LLC  shows that all of the proposed
signs will be located on poles.
Poles signs are prohibited in the City of Clarkston;
 

1. 3611 Church Street- Pole Sign ( Billboard Sign)
a. Pole signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

2. 3874 East Ponce  de Leon Avenue  (Billboard Sign)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

3. CSX Outside LED I-285( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

4. CSX Inside LED I-285 ( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

 
Therefore, the submitted applications are DENIED.
 
You may resubmit the applications for review with the applicable required documents and information. Please
include the following for each sign (location/type) request;

1. Completion of the sign permit application ( page 2-b) with all related dimension(s) listed.
2. Actual (real) colored  renderings of the proposed sign on a site plan (at the actual location)  with the

proposed lettering/wording.
3. Completed Hold Harmless Form (attached) for each location.
4. Invoice for each sign location.

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me.
 
Thank you.
 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM
Planning & Development Director
 

 
1055 Rowland St. |  Clarkston, GA 30021
(O) 404-296-6489
(F)  404-296-6480   
SQawiy@cityofclarkston.com



 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “B” 



So
uth

 Fo
rk 

Pe
ac

htr
ee

 Cr
ee

k

Milham Park
Forty Oaks

Friendship Forest

Chur
ch 

St

E P
on

ce 
De

 Le
on

 Av
e

Stone Mountain Fwy

Mc
len

do
n D

r

Montreal Rd

Broc
kett

 Rd

Norman Rd

Lawrenceville Hwy

Market St

N Indian Creek Dr

No
rth

ern
 Av

e

Ot
ell

o A
ve

Mem
oria

l D
r

Glendale Rd

Erskine Rd

N Decatur Rd

Ro
wla

nd 
St

Me
ll A

ve

Francine Dr

De
lia

 D
r

Verdi Way

Re
illy

 Ln

Ro
ger

s S
t

S J
oll

y A
ve

Cr
ee

kd
ale

 D
r

Nielsen DrCasa Dr

Montre
al

Cir

Jolly Ave

Pecan St

Cooledge Rd

Pa
rkd

ale
Dr

Deleon Ct

Wa
rre

n A
ve

Sanden F erry
Dr

Indian Creek Way

Milam Cir

Brook Dr
Va

ugh
n S

t

Tobie Cir

Verona Dr

Flamingo Dr

Tolbert Dr

East Ave

Ju
ne

au
Ct

W Hill St

Wi
llia

ms
 St

Memorial College Ave

Ed
inb

urg
h D

r

Zemory Dr

Fern Dr

Murphy St

Lindmoor Dr

Barr Cir

Avon Ave
Ta

nn
er 

Dr

Linkw oo dL n

Rehoboth Dr

Anthony Dr

Milton St

To
bie

 C
t

Elmscourt Dr

Holly
He

dg
e R

d

Johns Rd

Deleon Dr

Idlewood Rd

Valaire Dr

Stoneview Cir

Poplar Dr

Te
xe

l L
n

Alcan Way

Gloucester Dr

Garfield Dr

Vista Brook Dr

Cle
ave

mark
Dr

Bishop Dr

Ford Pl

Artesia Dr

Dove Way

Robinson Ave

Cloudland Dr

Ma
yfi

eld
 D

rPiper Dr

Maxey Hill Dr

Lag oon Ct

Burgundy Rd

Marlborough Dr

Valley Cir

Ca
me

lot
 Ci

r

Hollywood Dr

Lantern View Ln

Clyde
dale

Dr

College Ave

Pe
nd

let
on

 Av
e

Clark St

Montreal Way

Giffor
d D

r

Sm
ith

St

Be lle Glade Dr

Hill St

Po
un

ds
 Ln

Mauck St

Lindon Ln

Valley Brook Rd

Franks Dr

Hill Blvd

De
nis

on
 D

r

Bontura Ct

Maclaren Dr

Gi
bb

on
s D

r

Ex
cha

nge

Ave Sandy Woods Ln

Debelle St

Windfield Cir

Cranford Dr

Prince Way

Dunleith Ct

Sim
ps

on
 D

r

Sa
ns

 So
uc

i W
ay

Hudson Rd

North Ave

Strat
ton

 Ln

Co
dy

 C
ir

Clayhill

Woodlawn Cir

Wheaton Ln

S Marlborough Dr

Stapp Dr

Gr
ee

nb
ria

r P
l

Sa
ms R

d

C am elo
t L

n

Sp
arr

ow
 Ln

Tobie Grant Ln

Bu ice D r

Alcove Dr

Marvin Lee Dr

Mell Pl

Bushton Ct

Wood
lan

d A
ve

Castle Rock Way

Gl
yn

n O
ak

s D
r Jamison Pl

Camelot Ct

Market Crst

Orchard St

Bailey Rd

Lantern Wood Dr

Caintal Ct

C am
de

n Walk

Indian Creek Ln

Casa Woods Ln

Bacon St

Bonnie Glenn Ln

Va
nc

ou
ve

r D
r

Rayford Trl

Market Walk

W Smith St

Back Trl

Mchenry Dr

Brookdale Pl

Chewning Dr

Frazier W alk

GreenbriarCi r

Cardiff Way

Ca nadian Way

Lovejoy St

Moncrief Cir

Rufus HendersonDr

Mc
ke

nz
ie 

Ct

Medley Rd

Haralson Rd

Gibbons Ln

Delia Ct

Needham Dr

Spruce Valley Dr

Franks Ct

Carrington PointeSettlement Rd

Air
lie 

Dr

Me
lros

e Dr

Clarkston Industrial Blvd

Gablewood Ct

Lester St

Sprucewood Dr

Oa
kbr

ook Ln

Deleon Ln
Nielsen Ct

Cr
es

ce
nt 

Ce
nte

r B
lvd

Sta
nw

yc
k T

er

Artesia Cir

Wilson St

Cemetery Ave

Skylark Dr

Gl
en

wy
ck

 Pl

Park North Blvd

Sett le
me

n t
L n

Cousins Way

Lagoon Way

Glouc ester Way

Casa
 Ct

Bla
ck

sto
ne

 D
r

Tribble St

Wi
nn

ipe
g T

rl

Emerald Brook Ln

Harvest Run

Castletree Ct

Francine Ct

Calh oun
St

Greystone Ct E

Edinburgh Way

Wetherburn Dr

Montreal Creek Ct

Toronto Trl

Wagoner St

Tre
nt C

t

Tweed Pl

On
tar

io 
Ct

Ec
ho

 W
oo

ds
 C

tAnna Maria Ct

Qu
eb

ec
 C

t

E Castl
e C

t Old Mill Ct

Creekdale Ct

Cormen Ave

Chalmers Ct

Sanden Ferry Ct

Lantern Ridge Dr

Montreal Rd

Fern Dr

Wi
llia

ms St

Hill St

Smith St

Rogers St

Montreal Rd

Brocke
tt R

d

East Ave

Mem
oria

l D
r

Gi
ffo

rd 
Dr

N Ind
ian

Cr
ee

k D
r

Debelle St

N Decatur Rd

Stone Mountain Fwy

Carroll P ark Dr

§̈¦285

§̈¦285

£¤78

£¤29

£¤78

UV10

£¤29

£¤78

§̈¦285

NR-CD

I

NR-CD

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-2

NC-1

I

I

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-3

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NR-3

RC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

RC

NC-2

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NC-2

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

TC
TC

TC

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1RC

RC

NR-3

NR-3

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-CD

NC-2

NC-2

NC-2

NR-3

NR-3
NR-3

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1
NC-1

NR-1

NC-2

NC-1

NR-CD

NC-1

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NR-3

NC-2

NR-1

NR-3

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NC-1 NC-2

NC-2

NR-CD

I

I

I

Hugh Spivey Lake

Twin Brothers Lake

ZONING - CITY OF CLARKSTON, GA

0 0.25 0.50.125 Miles N

Zoning

I - Light Industrial

NC-1 - Neighborhood Commercial

NC-2 - Commercial

NR-1 - Residential Low

NR-2 - Residential Medium

NR-3 - Residential High

NR-CD - Residential Multi

RC - Residential / Commercial

TC - Town Center

Clarkston City Limits

ADOPTED:  January 1, 2016







CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 
 

SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE 
@ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just inside (West) 
of I-285.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:   City Council to discuss/review appeal by Railroad Outdoor LLC of City of Clarkston City Manager’s denial 
of a sign permit application from Railroad Outdoor LLC to erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH billboard sign on 
the property located at the southerly portion of Church St, just inside of (West) of I-285.     
 
BACKGROUND/IMPACT:    
City received referenced sign permit application (copy enclosed) on September 10, 2020, and subsequently 
submitted a denial on September 14, 2020 (copy enclosed), based on the City’s prohibition of pole signs.  Applicant 
submitted a reply letter on September 16, 2020 (copy enclosed), appealing the City’s decision, suggesting that the 
City look for the most specific applicable regulations for the denial.  Our review found several specific City code 
references requiring denial of the application, specifically: 
 

1. Signs are prohibited within public rights of ways and utility easements (City Code, Sec 15.5-41,3). 
2. Signs are prohibited within the railroad right of way (City Code, Sec 15.5-41, 4).  
3. Billboard signs are only permitted on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or I (City Code, Sec 15.5-63,b).  

The CSX RR right-of-way is not a parcel and does not have any of the permissible zoning designations.   
4. Billboard signs are prohibited within 500 feet of residential parcels (City Code, Sec 15.5-63f).  
5. Billboard signs are prohibited within 1,000 feet of other billboards (City Code, Sec 15.5-63e).   

 
City subsequently provided the applicant the specific denial reasons in a letter dated September 22, 2020 (copy 
enclosed) as well as advising the applicant of the appeal date/time, October 6, 2002, beginning at 7 pm.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Council to deny applicant’s sign permit application appeal.   

ITEM NO:  E12 

ACTION TYPE: 
BUSINESS APPEAL 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Work Session 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT: YES     NO 
Pages: 17 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES    NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I. GOMEZ,  
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   

















WEBB, KLASE & LEMOND, LLC 
AT T O R N E Y S  AT  L AW  

1900 THE EXCHANGE, S.E.  •  SUITE 480  •  ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30339 

(770) 444-9325  •  (770) 217-9950 (facsimile) 

 
Author’s Direct Dial:                        Email Address: 
    (770) 444-0773            Adam@WebbLLC.com 

 
September 16, 2020 

 
VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM 
Planning & Development Director 
City of Clarkston 
1055 Rowland Street  
Clarkston, GA 30021 
sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com 
 
 Re: Sign Applications for Railroad Outdoor, LLC 
 
Dear Ms. Qawiy: 
 
 I write to you in your capacity as Director of Planning and Development for the City of 
Clarkston on behalf of my client Railroad Outdoor, LLC (“Railroad”).  Pursuant to Section 15.5-
26(b)(1) of the Clarkston Code of Ordinances, please accept this letter as Railroad’s written 
notice of appeal from the City’s denial of my client’s four sign applications.  Based on my 
review of the City’s denial (Exh. A hereto) and the Chapter 15.5 Signs of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, I wanted to outline my client’s arguments on appeal.  These articulated grounds for 
appeal are not exhaustive, and Railroad reserves the right to present additional arguments prior to 
and at the City Council appeal hearing. 
 

All four of my client’s sign applications were denied on the grounds that “Pole signs are 
not permitted in the City of Clarkston.”  Denial of my client’s applications on this basis was 
incorrect for several reasons.  First, as you note in your September 14 email, all four of my 
client’s applications were for billboards, which are specifically governed by Section 15.5-63 of 
the Clarkston Code of Ordinances.  Your attempt to rely upon a general prohibition on pole signs 
rather than apply the more specific code section that governs billboards is inconsistent with 
Georgia law, which provides that the terms of a specific statute govern over those of a more 
general statute.  E.g., Denhardt v. Sparks, 844 S.E.2d 192, 195 (Ga. Ct. App. 2020); Vineville 
Capital Group, LLC v. McCook, 766 S.E.2d 156, 160 (Ga. Ct. App. 2014) (“the terms of a 
specific statute govern over those of a more general statute”); also Bellsouth 
Telecommunications, LLC v. Cobb County, 824 S.E.2d 233, 239 (Ga. 2019) (“the more specific 
statute governs over the more general one”).  Had you properly applied the more specific 
billboard regulation, the basis of denial would not have been applicable.   

 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

Section 15.5-63 allows billboards in the City of Clarkston that are 672 square feet in sign 
area and 50 feet in height, so long as the billboards are on parcels zoned RC, NC-1, NC-2, TC, or 
I; are located on parcels adjacent to US Highway 78 or Interstate 285 and oriented thereto; and 
comply with the standards set by Georgia Department of Transportation as to the use of digital 
technology.  See Section 15.5-63(a)-(g).  My client’s applications meet all of these criteria and 
should have been approved.  Railroad is aware of several billboards that have been erected in 
Clarkston despite the ordinance’s general prohibition on pole signs.  It is plainly not applicable to 
billboards. 

 
My client’s applications for billboards on property owned by CSX Railroad should also 

have been granted.  According to the City’s Zoning Map (Exh. B hereto), the railroad property 
within the City of Clarkston has not been zoned.  Therefore, Georgia law requires that my client 
be allowed to install the requested signs.  The general rule is that the owner of property has the 
right to use their property in any lawful manner.  E.g., Cherokee County v. Martin, 253 Ga. App. 
395, 396 (2002); Picadilly Place Condo. Ass’n v. Frantz, 210 Ga. App. 676, 678 (1993).  
Because zoning regulations restrict this right, they must be strictly construed in favor of the 
property owner, and more specifically, the owner’s free use of  their property.  DeKalb County v. 
Post Apartment Homes, L.P., 234 Ga. App. 409, 410(1) (1998); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 396; 
Glynn County v. Palmatary, 247 Ga. 570, 574 (1981); also Fayette County v. Seagraves, 245 Ga. 
196, 197-98, 264 S.E.2d 13 (1980).  Consequently, land use limitations must (i) be clearly 
established, (ii) be enforced only as to their plain and explicit terms, and (iii) any ambiguities 
therein must be resolved in the owner’s favor.   E.g., Northside Corp. v. City of Atlanta, 278 Ga. 
416  (2005); JWIC, Inc. v. City of Sylvester, 278 Ga. 416, 417 (2004); Martin, 253 Ga. App. at 
396; Picadilly, 210 Ga. App. at 678; Bo Fancy Productions v. Rabun County Bd. of Comm’s, 
267 Ga. 341, 343 (1996); Beugnot v. Coweta County, 231 Ga. App. 715, 722 (1998). 

 
Here, the CSX property is unzoned and thus not restricted by any applicable zoning 

regulations.  Although the CSX property has been inside the City limits for decades, the City has 
chosen not to zone the property.  As such, CSX has never had any opportunity to appear before 
the City Council to show the City what zoning and land use restrictions would be appropriate for 
the railroad property.  Thus, any restrictions being enforced by the City are invalid and void.  
E.g., Davidson Mineral Properties, Inc. v. Monroe County, 257 Ga. 215, 217 (1987) (holding 
county could not restrict use of property).  Because the City’s official zoning map 
unambiguously shows that the railroad property has not been zoned, the requested billboards 
must be allowed. 

 
Beyond these errors in misapplying the City’s Code of Ordinances and instances of 

undue discretion, Railroad also believes that the City’s guidelines with respect to billboard signs 
regulate on the basis of content.  Why else would your September 14 email request that my client 
resubmit renderings of the proposed signs with the proposed wording of the sign.  In the decision 
of Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 135 S. Ct. 2218, 2227 (2015), the Supreme Court held that 
“[g]overnment regulation of speech is content-based if a law applies to particular speech because 
of the topic discussed or the idea or message expressed.”  Id. at 2227 (citations omitted).  The 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 
Court deemed this rule to be “commonsense” and requires a reviewing court to determine 
whether a law “‘on its face’ draws distinctions based on the message a speaker conveys.”  Id. 
 

The Court then devoted several pages of its opinion to rejecting the rationales of the 
lower courts for finding that the law was content-neutral.  Id. at 2227-31.  For instance, the Court 
found that the government’s motives in adopting the law are irrelevant if the law regulates by 
content on its face.  Id. at 2228 (“Innocent motives do not eliminate the danger of censorship 
presented by a facially content-based statute, as future government officials may one day wield 
such statutes to suppress disfavored speech”).  The Court also noted that “a speech regulation 
targeted at specific subject matter is content-based even if it does not discriminate among 
viewpoints within that subject matter.”  Id. at 2230. 

The Court then analyzed whether the content-based law could survive strict scrutiny, 
“which requires the Government to prove that the restriction furthers a compelling interest and is 
narrowly tailored to achieve that interest.”  Id. at 2231 (citations omitted).  The Court held that 
the law could not survive strict scrutiny because, even if the town’s interests in traffic safety and 
aesthetics were considered compelling governmental interests, the code was “hopelessly 
underinclusive.”  Id. (noting that signs bearing certain messages were “no greater an eyesore” 
than other types of signs, as well as the lack of evidence that signs bearing some messages are 
more detrimental to traffic safety than signs conveying favored content).   

Since Reed, courts have repeatedly recognized that distinguishing between signs based 
on content is unconstitutional.  For example, in Thomas v. Schroer, 116 F.3d 869 (W.D. Tenn. 
2015), a court relied upon Reed to enjoin the Tennessee Department of Transportation from 
enforcing state sign laws that subjected off-premise signs to more regulation than on-premise 
signs.  Id. at 875-76.  This decision was affirmed by the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals in 
Thomas v. Bright, 937 F.3d 721 (6th Cir. 2019), which held that the content-based nature of the 
sign regulations post-Reed was “neither a close call nor a difficult question.”  Id. at 729, 733 
(“Tennessee’s Billboard Act contains a non-severable regulation of speech based on the content 
of the message. Applied to [the plaintiff’s] billboard, it is, therefore, a content-based regulation 
of non-commercial speech, which subjects it to strict scrutiny”).  The State of Kentucky’s sign 
regulations were just thrown out on the same basis as the Thomas case.  See L.D. Mgmt. Co. v. 
Thomas, 2020 WL 1978387, at *4 (W.D. Ky. Apr. 24, 2020). 

Even more recently, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals weighed in on this issue.  In 
Reagan National Advertising, Inc. v. City of Austin, __ F.3d __, 2020 WL 5015455 (5th Cir. 
Aug. 25, 2020), two sign companies filed applications to convert existing off-premise signs 
(a/k/a billboards) to digital technology.  The city denied the applications because its ordinance 
did not allow off-premise signs to be digitized (even though signs bearing on-premise content 
could be digitized).  The sign companies sued arguing the ordinance was unconstitutional 
pursuant to Reed but the district court granted judgment in favor of the city.  The Fifth Circuit 
reversed, finding the ordinance content-based and unconstitutional under Reed.  The court noted 
that “to determine whether a sign is on-premises or off-premises, one must read the sign and ask: 
does it advertise ‘a business, person, activity, goods, products, or services not located on the site 



Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM  
September 16, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 
where the sign is installed, or that directs persons to any location not on that site.’”  Id. at *6.  
This fact rendered the code content-based and unconstitutional.  Id. at *6-11.  The City’s 
admitted intent to review the content on Railroad’s proposed signs as part of the review process 
is similarly unconstitutional.   

 
Moreover, the City’s strict regulation of signs in general runs afoul of the Georgia 

Supreme Court’s requirement that governmental bodies employ the “least restrictive means” 
when regulating speech activity.  E.g., Coffey v. Fayette County, 279 Ga. 111, 111 (2005) 
(“Coffey I”); Statesboro Publ’g Co. v. City of Sylvania, 271 Ga. 92, 95-96 (1999).  Under this 
standard, cities and counties must carry a heavy burden in order to justify their sign restrictions.  
Coffey v. Fayette County, 280 Ga. 656, 657-58 (2006).  In order to meet this high threshold, the 
Georgia Supreme Court requires that evidence be presented to support the regulations.  Id.  This 
is because Georgia law is the most protective in the nation toward the use of signs for free speech 
activity.  Coffey I, 279 Ga. at 111 (“This Court has interpreted the Georgia Constitution to 
provide even broader protection than the First Amendment”).  Clarkston cannot meet this strict 
standard as to its Sign Ordinance. 

 
We will also contend that the City’s zoning procedures, Sign Ordinance, zoning code, 

and/or zoning map have been adopted in an improper manner.  Georgia’s Zoning Procedures 
Law is mandatory and strict compliance is required.  We have made requests for the necessary 
documentation simultaneously herewith and will supplement this appeal upon receipt.  

 
Under Georgia law an application must be granted if the ordinance is invalid for any 

reason.  E.g., Tilley Properties, Inc. v. Bartow County, 261 Ga. 153, 165 (1991) (holding that 
“[w]here, as in this case, the zoning ordinance is invalid, there is no valid restriction on the 
property, and the appellant has the right under the law to use the property as it so desires”); 
Davidson Mineral Props., 257 Ga. at 216-17 (invalidating basis of denial and then mandating 
that applicant was authorized to proceed with proposed use).  As such, Railroad is entitled to the 
requested permits.   
 

If you have any questions regarding this appeal or need any additional information 
regarding the same, please do not hesitate to contact me.  I look forward to the hearing in front of 
the City Council.   
 

 Respectfully yours, 
 
 

 
E. Adam Webb 

 
EAW/ss 
 
Attachments/Enclosures 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 



From: Shawanna Qawiy <sqawiy@cityofclarkston.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 14, 2020 4:03 PM
To: kshaw@railroadoutdoor.com
Subject: CSX Sign Permit Requests
 
Good Day,
 
The City is in receipt of  your request for sign permits.
 
A review of the four (4) sign permit applications from Railroad Outdoor, LLC  shows that all of the proposed
signs will be located on poles.
Poles signs are prohibited in the City of Clarkston;
 

1. 3611 Church Street- Pole Sign ( Billboard Sign)
a. Pole signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

2. 3874 East Ponce  de Leon Avenue  (Billboard Sign)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

3. CSX Outside LED I-285( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

4. CSX Inside LED I-285 ( Billboard)
a. Pole Signs are not permitted in the City of Clarkston.

 
Therefore, the submitted applications are DENIED.
 
You may resubmit the applications for review with the applicable required documents and information. Please
include the following for each sign (location/type) request;

1. Completion of the sign permit application ( page 2-b) with all related dimension(s) listed.
2. Actual (real) colored  renderings of the proposed sign on a site plan (at the actual location)  with the

proposed lettering/wording.
3. Completed Hold Harmless Form (attached) for each location.
4. Invoice for each sign location.

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me.
 
Thank you.
 
Shawanna N. Qawiy, MPA, MSCM
Planning & Development Director
 

 
1055 Rowland St. |  Clarkston, GA 30021
(O) 404-296-6489
(F)  404-296-6480   
SQawiy@cityofclarkston.com



 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “B” 



So
uth

 Fo
rk 

Pe
ac

htr
ee

 Cr
ee

k

Milham Park
Forty Oaks

Friendship Forest

Chur
ch 

St

E P
on

ce 
De

 Le
on

 Av
e

Stone Mountain Fwy

Mc
len

do
n D

r

Montreal Rd

Broc
kett

 Rd

Norman Rd

Lawrenceville Hwy

Market St

N Indian Creek Dr

No
rth

ern
 Av

e

Ot
ell

o A
ve

Mem
oria

l D
r

Glendale Rd

Erskine Rd

N Decatur Rd

Ro
wla

nd 
St

Me
ll A

ve

Francine Dr

De
lia

 D
r

Verdi Way

Re
illy

 Ln

Ro
ger

s S
t

S J
oll

y A
ve

Cr
ee

kd
ale

 D
r

Nielsen DrCasa Dr

Montre
al

Cir

Jolly Ave

Pecan St

Cooledge Rd

Pa
rkd

ale
Dr

Deleon Ct

Wa
rre

n A
ve

Sanden F erry
Dr

Indian Creek Way

Milam Cir

Brook Dr
Va

ugh
n S

t

Tobie Cir

Verona Dr

Flamingo Dr

Tolbert Dr

East Ave

Ju
ne

au
Ct

W Hill St

Wi
llia

ms
 St

Memorial College Ave

Ed
inb

urg
h D

r

Zemory Dr

Fern Dr

Murphy St

Lindmoor Dr

Barr Cir

Avon Ave
Ta

nn
er 

Dr

Linkw oo dL n

Rehoboth Dr

Anthony Dr

Milton St

To
bie

 C
t

Elmscourt Dr

Holly
He

dg
e R

d

Johns Rd

Deleon Dr

Idlewood Rd

Valaire Dr

Stoneview Cir

Poplar Dr

Te
xe

l L
n

Alcan Way

Gloucester Dr

Garfield Dr

Vista Brook Dr

Cle
ave

mark
Dr

Bishop Dr

Ford Pl

Artesia Dr

Dove Way

Robinson Ave

Cloudland Dr

Ma
yfi

eld
 D

rPiper Dr

Maxey Hill Dr

Lag oon Ct

Burgundy Rd

Marlborough Dr

Valley Cir

Ca
me

lot
 Ci

r

Hollywood Dr

Lantern View Ln

Clyde
dale

Dr

College Ave

Pe
nd

let
on

 Av
e

Clark St

Montreal Way

Giffor
d D

r

Sm
ith

St

Be lle Glade Dr

Hill St

Po
un

ds
 Ln

Mauck St

Lindon Ln

Valley Brook Rd

Franks Dr

Hill Blvd

De
nis

on
 D

r

Bontura Ct

Maclaren Dr

Gi
bb

on
s D

r

Ex
cha

nge

Ave Sandy Woods Ln

Debelle St

Windfield Cir

Cranford Dr

Prince Way

Dunleith Ct

Sim
ps

on
 D

r

Sa
ns

 So
uc

i W
ay

Hudson Rd

North Ave

Strat
ton

 Ln

Co
dy

 C
ir

Clayhill

Woodlawn Cir

Wheaton Ln

S Marlborough Dr

Stapp Dr

Gr
ee

nb
ria

r P
l

Sa
ms R

d

C am elo
t L

n

Sp
arr

ow
 Ln

Tobie Grant Ln

Bu ice D r

Alcove Dr

Marvin Lee Dr

Mell Pl

Bushton Ct

Wood
lan

d A
ve

Castle Rock Way

Gl
yn

n O
ak

s D
r Jamison Pl

Camelot Ct

Market Crst

Orchard St

Bailey Rd

Lantern Wood Dr

Caintal Ct

C am
de

n Walk

Indian Creek Ln

Casa Woods Ln

Bacon St

Bonnie Glenn Ln

Va
nc

ou
ve

r D
r

Rayford Trl

Market Walk

W Smith St

Back Trl

Mchenry Dr

Brookdale Pl

Chewning Dr

Frazier W alk

GreenbriarCi r

Cardiff Way

Ca nadian Way

Lovejoy St

Moncrief Cir

Rufus HendersonDr

Mc
ke

nz
ie 

Ct

Medley Rd

Haralson Rd

Gibbons Ln

Delia Ct

Needham Dr

Spruce Valley Dr

Franks Ct

Carrington PointeSettlement Rd

Air
lie 

Dr

Me
lros

e Dr

Clarkston Industrial Blvd

Gablewood Ct

Lester St

Sprucewood Dr

Oa
kbr

ook Ln

Deleon Ln
Nielsen Ct

Cr
es

ce
nt 

Ce
nte

r B
lvd

Sta
nw

yc
k T

er

Artesia Cir

Wilson St

Cemetery Ave

Skylark Dr

Gl
en

wy
ck

 Pl

Park North Blvd

Sett le
me

n t
L n

Cousins Way

Lagoon Way

Glouc ester Way

Casa
 Ct

Bla
ck

sto
ne

 D
r

Tribble St

Wi
nn

ipe
g T

rl

Emerald Brook Ln

Harvest Run

Castletree Ct

Francine Ct

Calh oun
St

Greystone Ct E

Edinburgh Way

Wetherburn Dr

Montreal Creek Ct

Toronto Trl

Wagoner St

Tre
nt C

t

Tweed Pl

On
tar

io 
Ct

Ec
ho

 W
oo

ds
 C

tAnna Maria Ct

Qu
eb

ec
 C

t

E Castl
e C

t Old Mill Ct

Creekdale Ct

Cormen Ave

Chalmers Ct

Sanden Ferry Ct

Lantern Ridge Dr

Montreal Rd

Fern Dr

Wi
llia

ms St

Hill St

Smith St

Rogers St

Montreal Rd

Brocke
tt R

d

East Ave

Mem
oria

l D
r

Gi
ffo

rd 
Dr

N Ind
ian

Cr
ee

k D
r

Debelle St

N Decatur Rd

Stone Mountain Fwy

Carroll P ark Dr

§̈¦285

§̈¦285

£¤78

£¤29

£¤78

UV10

£¤29

£¤78

§̈¦285

NR-CD

I

NR-CD

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-2

NC-1

I

I

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-3

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NR-3

RC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

RC

NC-2

TC

NC-2

NC-1

NC-2

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

NR-3

TC
TC

TC

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1RC

RC

NR-3

NR-3

RC

TC

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1

NR-CD

NC-2

NC-2

NC-2

NR-3

NR-3
NR-3

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-1
NC-1

NR-1

NC-2

NC-1

NR-CD

NC-1

NC-1

NR-1

NR-3

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NR-3

NC-2

NR-1

NR-3

NR-CD

NR-1

NR-1

NR-1

NR-3

NC-1

NC-1 NC-2

NC-2

NR-CD

I

I

I

Hugh Spivey Lake

Twin Brothers Lake

ZONING - CITY OF CLARKSTON, GA

0 0.25 0.50.125 Miles N

Zoning

I - Light Industrial

NC-1 - Neighborhood Commercial

NC-2 - Commercial

NR-1 - Residential Low

NR-2 - Residential Medium

NR-3 - Residential High

NR-CD - Residential Multi

RC - Residential / Commercial

TC - Town Center

Clarkston City Limits

ADOPTED:  January 1, 2016






	E. NEW BUSINESS
	SUMMARY SHEET - RAILROAD OUTDOOR LLC  APPEAL  CSC ROW JUST INSIDE  WEST OF I-285.pdf
	SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just inside (West) of I-285.

	SUMMARY SHEET - RAILROAD OUTDOOR LLC APPEAL  3611 CHURCH ST SIGN PERMIT.pdf
	SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3611 Church Street.

	2  9-16-2020     Appeal Letter to Clarkston - Final.pdf
	September 16, 2020
	VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL


	SUMMARY SHEET - RAILROAD OUTDOOR LLC APPEAL  3874 E PONCE DE LEON SIGN PERMIT.pdf
	SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at 3874 E Ponce de Leon Ave.

	3  9-16-2020     Appeal Letter to Clarkston - Final.pdf
	September 16, 2020
	VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL


	3  9-16-2020     Appeal Letter to Clarkston - Final.pdf
	September 16, 2020
	VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL


	3  9-16-2020     Appeal Letter to Clarkston - Final.pdf
	September 16, 2020
	VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL


	SUMMARY SHEET - RAILROAD OUTDOOR LLC APPEAL - CXS ROW JUST OUTSIDE  EAST  OF I-285.pdf
	SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just outside (East) of I-285.

	SUMMARY SHEET - RAILROAD OUTDOOR LLC  APPEAL  CSC ROW JUST INSIDE  WEST OF I-285.pdf
	SUBJECT:   Appeal of City Denial of Sign Permit Application from Railroad Outdoor LLC, to Erect a 14’ x 48’ FF 20’ VEE @ 50’ OAH Billboard Sign on the Property Located at the southerly portion of Church St, just inside (West) of I-285.

	4  9-16-2020     Appeal Letter to Clarkston - Final.pdf
	September 16, 2020
	VIA E-MAIL & U.S. MAIL


	E1  SUMMARY - Discuss  Section 13-3 from the Municipal Code.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Amending Section 13-3 of the Municipal Code

	e2  SUMMARY CLARKSTON DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Appointing a Council member to the Vacant Seat on DDA

	SUMMARY SHEET - RESOLUTION OCTOBER DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH.pdf
	SUBJECT:   Approve a Resolution declaring October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of Clarkston.

	SUMMARY SHEET - RESOLUTION ADOPT COUNTY PRE-DISASTER HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN.pdf
	SUBJECT:   Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City’s Adoption of the DeKalb County Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Plan

	E3 SUMMARY - Discuss  plantings  FF.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Plantings in the open field and pollinator garden in Friendship Forest

	e4 SUMMARY - Discuss All park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional.pdf
	SUBJECT Discuss all park signage be written and coordinated by a park management professional, naturalist interpreter or someone with content knowledge in environmental studies, natural sciences such as watersheds, ecology, or zoology as well as park ...

	e5 SUMMARY - Discuss Update to ordinance where land disturbance and stream buffers are .pdf
	SUBJECT Discuss an Update to ordinance where land disturbance and stream buffers are concerned to increase undisturbed buffers from 50 ft to 75 ft




